EQUITABLE RESOURCES INC /PA/ Form S-4 October 28, 2005

QuickLinks -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 28, 2005

Registration No.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

Form S-4

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Equitable Resources, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Pennsylvania

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

4923

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number)

25-0464690

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

225 North Shore Drive Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15212 412-553-5700

(Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Registrant's Principal Executive Offices)

Johanna G. O'Loughlin, Esq.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Equitable Resources, Inc.
225 North Shore Drive
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15212
412-553-5700

(Name, Address, Including Zip Code, and Telephone Number, Including Area Code, of Agent for Service)

Copies to:

James J. Barnes, Esq. Robert C. Gallo II, Esq. Reed Smith LLP 435 Sixth Avenue Pittsburgh, PA 15219 412-288-3131

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public:

As soon as practicable after the effective date of this registration statement.

If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. o

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, check the following box. o

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration number of the earlier effective registration number for the same offering.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration number of the earlier, effective statement for the same offering.

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box. o

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered	Securities to be Amount to be		Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price(1)	Amount of Registration Fee	
5% Notes due 2015	\$150,000,000	100%	\$150,000,000	\$17,655	

(1) Estimated solely for purposes of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(f) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act or until this Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to completion, dated October 28, 2005

PROSPECTUS

EQUITABLE RESOURCES

Offer to Exchange

5% Notes due 2015
which have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933
for all outstanding 5% Notes due 2015
(\$150,000,000 aggregate principal amount outstanding)

EQUITABLE RESOURCES, INC.

The exchange notes are being registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are being offered in exchange for the original notes that were previously issued in an offering exempt from the registration requirements under the federal securities laws. The terms of the exchange offer are summarized below and more fully described in this prospectus.

The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 200, unless extended.

We will exchange all original notes that are validly tendered and not withdrawn before the exchange offer expires for an equal principal amount of exchange notes which are registered under the Securities Act.

You may withdraw tenders of original notes at any time before the exchange offer expires.

The exchange of original notes for exchange notes will generally not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We can amend or terminate the exchange offer.

The terms of the exchange notes will be substantially identical to the original notes, except that the transfer restrictions and registration rights relating to the original notes will not apply to the exchange notes.

We may redeem some or all of the exchange notes at any time, or from time to time, at our option, at the redemption prices stated herein.

We may from time to time, without notice to or the consent of the holders of the exchange notes, create and issue more notes ranking equally and ratably with the exchange notes in all respects.

Please refer to "Risk Factors" beginning on page 7 of this prospectus for a discussion of risks you should consider in connection with the exchange offer.

Currently, there is no public trading market for the exchange notes.

Interest on the exchange notes will be payable in arrears on every April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 2006.

As of September 30, 2005, the aggregate outstanding indebtedness to which the exchange notes are effectively subordinated is \$1.5 million and with which the exchange notes will rank *pari passu* is \$1,054 million. The exchange notes will be effectively subordinated to our secured indebtedness and to the indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

We are not making this exchange offer in any state or jurisdiction where it is not permitted.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved the exchange notes or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this Prospectus is , 2005.

In making your investment decision, you should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. This prospectus is part of a registration statement we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. This prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about us that is not included in this prospectus. You may obtain a copy of this information, without charge, upon written or oral request, as described in the "Where You Can Find More Information" section. In order to obtain timely delivery, please provide us with at least five business days' notice. To ensure the timely delivery of any requested information with regard to this exchange offer, we must receive your request for information no later than , 200 . We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus only. Our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may have changed since that date. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances imply that the information herein is correct as of any date subsequent to the date on the cover of this prospectus.

In this prospectus, "we," "us," "our," "Equitable," and the "Company" refer collectively to Equitable Resources, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless otherwise specified.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Prospectus Summary	1
Risk Factors	7
Forward-Looking Statements	15
Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference	16
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	17
The Exchange Offer	18
Use of Proceeds	27
Capitalization	28
Summary Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data	29
Description of Exchange Notes	31
Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations	46
Plan of Distribution	52
Legal Matters	53
Experts	53
Where You Can Find More Information	53
i	33

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary may not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read the entire prospectus, including, the matters set forth under "Risk Factors" and the financial data and related notes included in this prospectus and incorporated by reference in this prospectus, before making an investment decision.

About Equitable Resources, Inc.

We are an integrated energy company. We focus on Appalachian area natural gas production and gathering, natural gas distribution and transmission and the development of energy infrastructure and efficiency solutions for our customers primarily in the northeastern section of the United States. Together with our subsidiaries, we offer energy (natural gas, crude oil and natural gas liquids) products and services to wholesale and retail customers through three business segments: Equitable Utilities, Equitable Supply and NORESCO.

Equitable Utilities

Equitable Utilities' operations comprise the sale and transportation of natural gas to customers at state-regulated rates, interstate pipeline gathering, transportation and storage of natural gas subject to federal regulation, the unregulated marketing of natural gas, and limited trading activities. In 2004 and in the nine months ended September 30, 2005, we derived approximately 36% and 32%, respectively, of our net operating revenues from Equitable Utilities.

Equitable Supply

Equitable Supply's business consists of two activities, production and gathering, with operations in the Appalachian Basin region of the United States. Equitable Production develops, produces and sells natural gas and minor amounts of associated crude oil and its associated by-products. Equitable Gathering engages in natural gas gathering and processing of natural gas liquids. Equitable Supply generated 58% of our net operating revenues in 2004 and 63% of our net operating revenues for the first nine months of 2005.

NORESCO

NORESCO provides an integrated group of energy-related products and services that are designed to reduce its customers' operating costs and improve their energy efficiency. The segment's activities comprise performance contracting, energy efficiency programs, combined heat and power and central boiler/chiller plant development, design, construction, ownership and operation. NORESCO's customers include governmental, military, institutional, commercial and industrial end-users.

In May 2005, we announced the retention of an investment banking firm to assist us in considering strategic alternatives for our NORESCO segment, including but not limited to a sale, merger or other business combination. We believe that a strategic alternative will not only allow NORESCO to more successfully leverage its market opportunities but will also allow us to focus on opportunities in our Equitable Utilities and Equitable Supply segments.

Principal Offices

Our principal offices are located at 225 North Shore Drive, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15212 and our telephone number is (412) 553-5700.

The Exchange Offer

Consequences if You Fail to Exchange Outstanding Original Notes and Shelf Registration." Securities Offered Up to \$150,000,000 of 5% Notes due 2015. The terms of the exchange notes and the original notes are identical in all material respects, except for certain transfer restrictions and registration rights relating to the original notes. See "The Exchange Offer Terms of the Exchange Offer Period for Tendering Outstanding Original Notes." We are offering to exchange the original notes for a like principal amount of exchange notes. Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, original notes may only be exchanged in integral principal multiples of \$1,000. Expiration Date; Withdrawal of Tender Our exchange offer will expire 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 200 or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. Any original notes not accepted by us for exchange for any reason will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer. Resales of Exchange Notes Based on interpretive letters of the SEC staff to third parties, we believe that you can offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;		
agreement in which we agreed to deliver this prospectus to you and to make an exchange offer. This exchange offer is intended to satisfy the exchange and registration rights granted to the initial purchers of the original notes in the registration rights agreement. Except in the limited circumstances described below, after the exchange offer is complete, you will no longer be entitled to any exchange or registration rights with respect to your original notes. See "The Exchange Offer You May Suffer Adverse Consequences if You Fail to Exchange Outstanding Original Notes and Shelf Registration." Securities Offered Up to \$150,000,000 of 5% Notes due 2015. The terms of the exchange notes and the original notes are identical in all material respects, except for certain transfer restriction and registration rights relating to the original notes. See "The Exchange Offer Terms of the Exchange Offer? Period for Tendering Outstanding Original Notes." We are offering to exchange the original notes for a like principal amount of exchange notes. Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, original notes may only be exchanged in integral principal multiples of \$1,000. Expiration Date; Withdrawal of Tender Our exchange offer will expire 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on 200 or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer. Resales of Exchange Notes Based on interpretive letters of the SEC staff to third parties, we believe that you can offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;	Background	terms of the original notes were established in an officer's declaration pursuant to the authorization of our board of directors in accordance with the indenture described
original notes are identical in all material respects, except for certain transfer restriction and registration rights relating to the original notes. See "The Exchange Offer Terms of the Exchange Offer" We are offering to exchange the original notes for a like principal amount of exchange notes. Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, original notes may only be exchanged in integral principal multiples of \$1,000. Expiration Date; Withdrawal of Tender Our exchange offer will expire 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 200 or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. Any original notes not accepted by us for exchange for any reason will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer. Resales of Exchange Notes Based on interpretive letters of the SEC staff to third parties, we believe that you can offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;		agreement in which we agreed to deliver this prospectus to you and to make an exchange offer. This exchange offer is intended to satisfy the exchange and registration rights granted to the initial purchasers of the original notes in the registration rights agreement. Except in the limited circumstances described below, after the exchange offer is complete, you will no longer be entitled to any exchange or registration rights with respect to your original notes. See "The Exchange Offer You May Suffer Adverse Consequences if You Fail to Exchange Outstanding Original Notes and Shelf
notes. Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, original notes may only be exchanged in integral principal multiples of \$1,000. Expiration Date; Withdrawal of Tender Our exchange offer will expire 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 200 or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. Any original notes not accepted by us for exchange for any reason will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer. Resales of Exchange Notes Based on interpretive letters of the SEC staff to third parties, we believe that you can offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;	Securities Offered	Up to \$150,000,000 of 5% Notes due 2015. The terms of the exchange notes and the original notes are identical in all material respects, except for certain transfer restrictions and registration rights relating to the original notes. See "The Exchange Offer Terms of
or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. Any original notes not accepted by us for exchange for any reason will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer. Resales of Exchange Notes Based on interpretive letters of the SEC staff to third parties, we believe that you can offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;	The Exchange Offer	notes. Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, original notes may only be exchanged in integral principal
offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if: you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;	Expiration Date; Withdrawal of Tender	or a later time if we choose to extend the exchange offer. You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time prior to the expiration date. All outstanding original notes that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. Any original notes not accepted by us for exchange for any reason will be returned to you at our expense as promptly as possible after the expiration or termination of the exchange
	Resales of Exchange Notes	offer for resale, resell and otherwise transfer the exchange notes without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if:
		you acquire the exchange notes in the ordinary course of business;

	you are not participating, do not intend to participate, and have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate, in the distribution of the exchange notes; and
	you are not an "affiliate" of ours, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. If any of these conditions is not satisfied and you transfer any exchange notes without qualifying for a registration exemption, you may incur liability under the Securities Act. We do not assume or indemnify you against this liability.
	Each broker-dealer acquiring exchange notes for its own account in exchange for original notes which it acquired through market-making activities or other trading activities must acknowledge that it will deliver a proper prospectus when any such exchange notes are transferred. After notice to us in writing, a broker-dealer may use this prospectus, as amended or supplemented from time to time, for an offer to resell, a resale or other retransfer of such exchange notes. We have agreed that until , 200 we will keep the prospectus current and make it available for this purpose to broker-dealers who request it in writing, for such use.
Conditions to the Exchange Offer	Our obligation to accept for exchange, or to issue the exchange notes in exchange for, any original notes is subject to certain customary conditions relating to compliance with any applicable law, or any applicable interpretation by the staff of the SEC, or any order of any governmental agency or court of law. See "The Exchange Offer Conditions to the Exchange Offer."
Procedures for Tendering Notes Held in the Form of Book-Entry Interests	The original notes were issued as global securities and were deposited upon issuance with the Trustee, as custodian for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). The Trustee issued certificateless depositary interests in those outstanding original notes, which represent a 100% interest in those original notes, to DTC. Beneficial interests in the outstanding original notes, which are held by direct or indirect participants in DTC through the certificateless depository interest, are shown on, and transfers of the original notes can only be made through, records, maintained in book-entry form by DTC.
	You may tender your outstanding original notes: through a computer-generated message transmitted by DTC's Automated Tender Offer Program system and received by the exchange agent and forming a part of a confirmation of book-entry transfer in which you acknowledge and agree to be bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal; or
	3

	by sending a properly completed and signed letter of transmittal, which accompanies this prospectus, and other documents required by the letter of transmittal, or a facsimile of the letter of transmittal and other required documents, to the exchange agent at the address on the cover page of the letter of transmittal; and either:
	a timely confirmation of book-entry transfer of your outstanding original notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC, under the procedure for book-entry transfers described in this prospectus under the heading "The Exchange Offer Book Entry Transfers" must be received by the exchange agent on or before the expiration date; or
	the documents necessary for compliance with the guaranteed delivery described in "The Exchange Offer Guaranteed Delivery Procedures" must be received by the exchange agent on or before the expiration date.
Procedures for Tendering Notes held in the Form of Registered Notes	If you hold registered original notes, you must tender your registered original notes by sending a properly completed and signed letter of transmittal, together with other documents required by it, and your certificates, to the exchange agent, in accordance with the procedures described in this prospectus under the heading "The Exchange Offer Procedures for Tendering Original Notes."
United States Federal Income Tax Considerations	The exchange offer should not result in any income, gain or loss to the holders of original notes or to us for United States federal income tax purposes. See "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations."
Use of Proceeds	We will not receive any proceeds from the issuance of the exchange notes in the exchange offer. The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the original notes were approximately \$148,009,500. The proceeds were used to reduce our outstanding commercial paper. See "Use of Proceeds."
Exchange Agent Shelf Registration Statement	The Bank of New York is serving as the exchange agent for the exchange offer. In limited circumstances, holders of original notes may require us to register their original notes under a shelf registration statement. See "The Exchange Offer Shelf Registration."
Regulatory Requirements	The completion of the exchange offer is not contingent upon or subject to any federal or state regulatory compliance or approvals.

The Exchange Notes

The following summary contains basic information about the exchange notes and is not intended to be a complete description. It may not contain all the information that may be important to you. For a more complete description of the exchange notes, please refer to the section of this prospectus entitled "Description of Exchange Notes."

T	ד עווי ד
Issuer	Equitable Resources, Inc.
Securities Offered	\$150,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 5% Notes due October 1, 2015
Maturity	October 1, 2015
Interest Rate	5% per year
Interest Payment Dates	April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 2006
Minimum Denomination	\$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof
Optional Redemption	We may redeem the exchange notes at our option, at any time in whole or from time to time in part, at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the exchange notes to be redeemed and (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the exchange notes to be redeemed (exclusive of interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 15 basis points, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption. See "Description of Exchange Notes Optional Redemption."
Ranking	The exchange notes will be our senior unsecured debt and will rank equally with all of our existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The exchange notes will be effectively subordinated to all of our existing and future secured debt to the extent of the assets securing that debt and to all the debt and other liabilities of our subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2005, after giving effect to the offering of the original notes and the application of the net proceeds from the offering of the original notes, we would have had approximately \$1.5 million outstanding indebtedness to which the exchange notes are effectively subordinated and \$1,054 million outstanding indebtedness with which the exchange notes will rank <i>pari passu</i> .
Certain Covenants	The indenture governing the exchange notes will, among other things, contain
Certain Covenants	covenants limiting our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to:
	incur debt secured by liens;
	engage in sale-leaseback transactions; and
	merge or consolidate or sell all or substantially all of our assets.

	These covenants are subject to important exceptions and qualifications described under "Description of Exchange Notes Certain Covenants."
Events of Default	Pursuant to the indenture governing the exchange notes, an event of default with respect to the exchange notes will occur if we:
	fail to make a required interest payment on the exchange notes, which continues for 30 days;
	fail to make a required principal payment on the exchange notes at maturity;
	default in the performance of or breach certain covenants contained in the
	indenture, which continues for 60 days after due notice by the Trustee or by
	holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the exchange notes;
	default under any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness for borrowed money in an aggregate principal amount of at least \$50,000,000 (which default constitutes a failure to pay any portion of the principal of such
	indebtedness when due and payable after the expiration of any applicable grace period with respect thereto); or
	become subject to certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization.
	These events of default are subject to important exceptions and qualifications described under "Description of Exchange Notes Events of Default."
Listing	We do not intend to list the exchange notes on any securities exchange.
Further Issues	We may from time to time, without notice to or the consent of the holders of the exchange notes, create and issue further exchange notes ranking equally and ratably with the exchange notes in all respects, so that such further exchange notes shall be consolidated and form a single series with the exchange notes offered by this prospectus and shall have the same terms as to status, redemption or otherwise as the exchange notes offered by this prospectus.
	The indenture governing the exchange notes does not limit the amount of exchange notes or other debt securities that we may issue under the indenture. We have issued, and are permitted to continue to issue, additional series of debt securities under the indenture.
Risk Factors	You should refer to the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 7 for a discussion of material risks you should carefully consider before deciding to exchange your notes.
	6

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information in this prospectus, you should carefully consider the following factors in connection with the exchange offer.

Risks Relating to Our Business

Natural gas price volatility may have an adverse effect on our revenue, profitability and liquidity.

Our revenue, profitability and liquidity depend upon the price and demand for natural gas. The markets for natural gas are volatile and fluctuations in prices will affect our financial results. Recently natural gas prices have increased substantially. The recent increase, and any additional increases, in natural gas prices may be accompanied by or result in increased margining requirements under our hedging agreements, increased well drilling costs, increased deferral of purchased gas costs for our distribution operations, increased production taxes, increased lease operating expenses and increased exposure to credit losses resulting from potential increases in uncollectible accounts receivable from our distribution customers. Lower natural gas prices, increases in our estimates of development costs or changes to our production assumptions may result in our having to make downward adjustments to our estimated proved reserves and incur non-cash charges to earnings.

Natural gas prices are affected by a number of factors beyond our control, which include:

weather conditions;
the supply of and demand for natural gas;
national and worldwide economic and political conditions;
the price and availability of alternative fuels;
the proximity to, and availability of capacity on, transportation facilities; and
government regulations, such as regulation of natural gas transportation, royalties and price controls.

We use derivative contracts to hedge commodity prices which may subject us to the material risk of margin calls and may prohibit us from receiving the full benefit of increasing natural gas prices.

We periodically enter into commodity price derivative contracts (hedging arrangements, including futures contracts, swap agreements and exchange traded instruments) for the purpose of establishing fixed prices and managing the risk associated with natural gas price volatility. We have entered into derivative contracts primarily to hedge (i) a portion of our expected natural gas production and (ii) natural gas sales transactions associated with gas held in storage. Our hedging contracts typically reduce our exposure to decreases in the market prices below the agreed-upon fixed price. When forward market prices increase above the agreed-upon fixed price, we may be subject to margin calls that require us to post material amounts of collateral with our hedge counterparties in the form of cash until settlement. The cash collateral provided to our hedge counterparties is returned to us in whole or in part upon a reduction in forward market prices, depending on the amount of such reduction, or in whole upon settlement of the related hedge transaction. In addition, to the extent we have hedged our current production at prices below the current market price, we are unable to benefit fully from the increase in the price of natural gas.

We are also exposed to the risk of non-performance by our hedge counterparties of their obligations under the derivatives contracts. In addition, unauthorized speculative trades could occur that may expose us to substantial losses to cover a position in the contract, which may in turn have a material adverse effect on our revenues, cash flows and results of operations. We maintain a system of

internal controls, however, to limit the possibility of unauthorized trading or speculation on commodity prices.

We are dependent on our ability to cost-effectively access capital markets. Our inability to obtain capital on acceptable terms may adversely affect our business. A reduction in our credit ratings could increase our borrowing costs.

We rely on access to both short-term debt markets and longer-term capital markets as a source of liquidity and to satisfy our capital requirements in excess of cash flow from our operations. Any inability to maintain our current credit ratings could affect, especially during times of uncertainty in the capital markets, our ability to raise capital on favorable terms which, in turn, could impact our ability to manage our business. Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services periodically assign credit ratings on our debt. We raise capital primarily by issuing senior-unsecured debt (currently rated A2 and A-, respectively) which we typically use to finance longer-terms assets and issuing commercial paper (currently rated P-1 and A-2, respectively) which we typically use for working capital and liquidity requirements. Any downgrades in these ratings could have a negative impact on our liquidity, our access to capital markets, our costs of financing and could increase the amount of collateral required by our hedge counterparties. Capital market disruptions could also adversely affect our ability to access one or more financial markets.

Each of the rating agencies has stated that our rating is based on their expectations with respect to certain financial performance measures and ratios.

A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the exchange notes, inasmuch as such rating does not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor. The ratings assigned to the exchange notes address the likelihood of payment of principal and interest on the notes pursuant to their terms. A rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

We may incur additional indebtedness, which may adversely affect our cash flow, our ability to make payments on the exchange notes and our financial results.

The indenture governing the exchange notes does not limit the amount of other debt securities that we may issue. We have issued, and are permitted to issue in the future, additional series of debt securities under the indenture. As of September 30, 2005, we had total short-term debt and obligations of \$474 million, total long-term debt and obligations of \$845 million and shareholders' equity of \$267 million. The amount of our indebtedness may have important consequences to you. For example, it could:

make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the exchange notes;

require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;

put us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt;

increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

increase our vulnerability to interest rate increases to the extent our variable-rate debt is not effectively hedged; and

limit our ability to make investments or take other actions or borrow additional funds.

The indenture relating to the exchange notes and our other debt instruments contain financial and other restrictive covenants that will limit our ability to engage in activities that may be in our long-term best interests. Our failure to comply with those covenants could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in acceleration of all of our debts.

Furthermore, a default, if not cured or waived, under the indenture governing the exchange notes would cause cross defaults under our revolving credit agreement and other debt instruments. In that event, a significant portion of our indebtedness then may become immediately due and payable. We are not certain whether we would have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make these accelerated payments, including payments on the exchange notes.

Our commercial paper debt has relatively short maturities. Upon the maturity of our outstanding commercial paper, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain additional financing at the same or lower interest rates. Additional interest costs that we cannot pass on to our utility and other customers, either because of regulatory or competitive limitations, would reduce our net income.

Upon a material default under our credit agreement, including a change of control, we are not certain whether we would have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds to make accelerated payments on our debt, including on the exchange notes.

We maintain a revolving credit facility for working capital, capital expenditures, share repurchases and other lawful corporate purposes and as support for our commercial paper program. Subject to certain terms and conditions our lenders have committed to provide loans and letters of credit in an aggregate amount of up to \$650,000,000. Subject to certain terms and conditions we may on a one-time basis request that our lenders' commitment be increased to an aggregate amount of up to \$1,000,000,000. We have received board approval to increase the aggregate amount of our short term borrowing capacity to \$1,000,000,000. We may request two one-year extensions of the maturity date.

A change of control will cause an event of default under the terms of the credit agreement which governs our revolving credit facility. Upon the occurrence of a change of control, the lenders who provided the credit facility can declare the unpaid principal amount of all outstanding loans under the credit facility, including all interest accrued and unpaid thereon, immediately due and payable. There can be no assurance that we will have, or be able to obtain, sufficient funds at the time of the change of control to make any accelerated payments on our debt, including on the exchange notes.

Our revolving credit agreement also requires us to maintain at all times a ratio of consolidated debt to total capital of not more than 65%. Any events or circumstances (including any charges to earnings) which have an effect, directly or indirectly, of reducing our common equity, increasing our indebtedness or reducing interest coverage, in relative terms, could result in non-compliance with this covenant. Our revolving credit agreement includes a cross-default provision that would be triggered if we or any of our subsidiaries defaults on any payment due under any indebtedness or certain derivative contracts, including most of our hedging agreements, exceeding \$50 million.

Our need to comply with comprehensive, complex and sometimes unpredictable government regulations may increase our costs and limit our revenue growth, which may result in reduced earnings.

We are subject to laws, regulations and other legal requirements enacted or adopted by federal, state and local, as well as foreign authorities relating to protection of the environment and health and safety matters, including those legal requirements that govern discharges of substances into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, the clean-up of contaminated sites, groundwater quality and availability, plant and wildlife protection, restoration of drilling properties after drilling is completed, pipeline safety and work practices related to employee health and safety. Complying with these requirements could have a significant effect on our respective costs of

operations and competitive position. In addition, we could incur substantial costs, including clean-up costs, fines and civil or criminal sanctions and third party damage claims. Furthermore, our operations are subject to extensive state and local legislation and regulation, which is under constant review for amendment or expansion. If we fail to comply with statutes and regulations, we may be subject to substantial penalties, which would decrease our profitability.

Significant portions of our gathering, transportation, storage and distribution businesses are subject to state and federal regulation including regulation of the rates which we may assess our customers. The agencies which regulate our rates may establish strictures which prohibit us from realizing a level of return which we believe is appropriate. These strictures may take the form of imputed revenue credits, cost disallowances (including purchased gas cost recoveries) and/or expense deferrals.

The actual quantities and present value of our proved gas reserves may prove to be lower than we have estimated, which could negatively impact our long-term growth prospects.

The proved gas reserve information included and incorporated into this prospectus represents only estimates. These estimates are prepared by company engineers and are reviewed by independent petroleum engineering firms. The estimates were calculated using gas prices in effect on the date indicated in the reports. Any significant price changes will have a material effect on the present value of our reserves. For example, an increase in gas prices of approximately \$0.50 per mcfe from those prices used to calculate our reserves in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 would increase the present value of our proved reserves by approximately \$315 million.

Petroleum engineering involves a complex and subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of gas that cannot be measured in an exact manner. The process involves significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir. Future economic and operating conditions are uncertain which could cause a revision to our future reserve estimates. Estimates of economically recoverable gas reserves and of future net cash flows depend upon a number of variable factors and assumptions, including:

historical production from the area compared with production from other comparable producing areas; and

the assumed effects of regulation by governmental agencies.

Because all reserve estimates are to some degree subjective, each of the following items may differ materially from those assumed in estimating reserves:

the quantities of gas that are ultimately recovered;

the timing of the recovery of gas reserves;

the production and operating costs incurred;

the amount and timing of future development expenditures; and

the gas price received.

Furthermore, different reserve engineers may make different estimates of reserves and cash flows based on the same available data. Actual production, revenues and expenditures with respect to reserves will vary from estimates and the variances may be material.

The discounted future net revenues included and incorporated in this prospectus should not be considered as the market value of the reserves attributable to our properties. As required by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), the estimated discounted future net revenues from proved reserves are generally based on prices and costs as of the date of the estimate while actual

future prices and costs may be materially higher or lower. Actual future net revenues will also be affected by factors such as:

the amount and timing of actual production;

supply and demand for gas; and

changes in governmental regulations or taxation.

In addition, the 10% discount factor, which the SEC requires to be used to calculate discounted future net reserves for reporting purposes, is not necessarily the most appropriate discount factor based on the cost of capital in effect from time to time and risks associated with our business and the gas industry in general.

The amount or timing of actual future gas production and the cost of drilling is difficult to predict and may vary significantly from reserves and production estimates which may reduce our earnings.

In 2005 we have expanded our drilling program and we are currently considering further expansion. There are many risks in developing natural gas, including numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved gas reserves and in projecting future rates of production and timing of development expenditures. Our future success depends on our ability to develop additional gas reserves that are economically recoverable and our failure to do so may reduce our earnings. The total amount or timing of actual future production may vary significantly from reserves and production estimates. Our drilling of development wells can involve significant risks, including those related to timing, success rates and cost overruns and these risks can be affected by the availability of leases, rigs, a qualified work force, and government approvals, geology and other factors. Drilling for natural gas can be unprofitable, not only from dry wells, but from productive wells that do not produce sufficient revenues to return a profit. Our drilling program may be limited by a lack of capacity on or access to existing transportation pipelines or by curtailments on such pipelines. Also, title problems, weather conditions, gas price volatility, governmental requirements and shortages or delays in the delivery of equipment and services can delay our drilling operation or result in their cancellation. The cost of drilling, completing, and operating wells is often uncertain, and new wells may not be productive or we may not recover all or any portion of our investment. Without continued successful exploitation or acquisition activities, our reserves and revenues will decline as a result of our current reserves being depleted by production. We cannot assure you that we will be able to find or acquire additional reserves at acceptable costs.

Our operations are weather sensitive.

Sustained periods of weather inconsistent with normal in areas where we operate can create volatility in our earnings. Weather conditions directly influence the demand for natural gas, affect the price of energy commodities and may hinder our gathering, transportation and drilling operations. For example, mild winter temperatures can cause a decrease in the volume or affect the price of gas we sell in any year and colder winter temperatures can cause an increase in the amount or in the price of gas we sell in any year. In addition, severe weather, including hurricanes, can be destructive, causing natural gas prices to be volatile, our drilling operations to be curtailed, delayed or canceled, our gathering and transportation assets to be damaged and increasing our operating expenses.

Our operations are subject to inherent risk which may result in substantial losses to us and may subject us to litigation from time to time

The nature of our operations presents inherent risks of loss that could adversely affect our results of operations. Our operations are subject to inherent hazards and risks such as: fires; natural disasters; explosions; formations with abnormal pressures; blowouts; collapses of wellbore casing or other

tubulars; pipeline ruptures; spills; and other hazards and risks that may cause unforeseen interruptions, personal injury or property damage. Additionally, our facilities, machinery, and equipment, including in excess of 14,000 miles of pipelines, are subject to third party damage, including terrorism and vandalism. Any of these events could cause a loss of hydrocarbons, environment pollution, personal injury or death claims, damage to our properties or the properties of others or a loss of revenue by us or others. As protection against operational hazards, we maintain insurance coverage against some, but not all, potential losses. Our coverages include: operator's extra expense; physical damage to certain assets; employer's liability; business interruption; comprehensive general liability; automobile; and workers' compensation. Many of the agreements that we execute with contractors provide for the division of responsibilities between the contractor and ourselves, and we seek to obtain an indemnification from the contractor for certain of these risks. We make every effort to execute written agreements with contractors to obtain indemnification and insurance protection whenever possible, however, due to limited bargaining and negotiating power and the contractors' unwillingness to provide indemnification, we are not always able to secure written agreements with our contractors that contain indemnification or the desired level of insurance coverage. In addition, we have a safety program which promotes safety on and off the job site for all employees and contractors and is intended to limit our exposure to liability for operational hazards. Insurance or indemnification agreements, if any, may not adequately protect us against liability from all of the consequences of the hazards described above. The occurrence of an event not fully insured or indemnified against, or the failure of a contractor to meet its indemnification obligations, could result in substantial losses to us. In addition, insurance may not be available to cover any or all of these risks, or, even if available, it may not be adequate or insurance premiums or other costs may rise significantly in the future, so as to make such insurance prohibitively expensive. Furthermore, such hazards and risks may subject us to litigation from time to time. Such litigation could result in substantial monetary judgments against us or be resolved on unfavorable terms, the result of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We may engage in disposition and acquisition strategies that involve a number of inherent risks, any of which may cause us not to realize anticipated benefits and may adversely affect our earnings, cash flows and results of operations.

We intend to continue to strategically position our business in order to improve our ability to compete. A portion of our strategic review involves evaluating, and when appropriate implementing, dispositions of businesses or properties that do not meet our goals or that are viewed as valuable in the marketplace and by acquisitions of businesses or properties complementary to our strengths. As a result, the relative makeup of our business is subject to change. Acquisitions, joint ventures and other business combinations involve various inherent risks, such as assessing the value, strengths, weaknesses, contingent and other liabilities and potential profitability of acquisition or other transaction candidates; the potential loss of key personnel of an acquired business; our ability to achieve identified financial and operating synergies anticipated to result from an acquisition or other transaction; and unanticipated changes in business and economic conditions affecting an acquisition or other transaction.

We may be unable to realize, or do so within any particular time frame, the cost reductions, cash flow increases or other synergies expected to result from acquisitions, joint ventures and other transactions or investments we may undertake, or be unable to generate additional revenue to offset any unanticipated inability to realize such expected synergies. Realization of the anticipated benefits of acquisitions or other transactions could take longer than expected, and implementation difficulties, market factors, and the deterioration in domestic or global economic conditions could alter the anticipated benefits.

If we fail to achieve our strategic or financial goals in any acquisition or disposition transaction, it could have a significant adverse affect on our earnings, cash flows and results of operations.

Furthermore, if we borrow money to finance an acquisition, our failure to achieve our stated goals could impact our ability to repay such borrowings and make payments on the exchange notes and could weaken our financial condition.

The exchange notes are our obligations and not obligations of our subsidiaries and will be structurally subordinated to the claims of our subsidiaries' creditors.

Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities. Our subsidiaries will have no obligation to pay any amounts due on the exchange notes or to provide us with funds for our payment obligations, whether by dividends, distributions, loans or other payments. Payments to us by our subsidiaries will also be contingent upon our subsidiaries' earnings and business considerations. In addition, any payment of dividends, distributions, loans or advances by our subsidiaries to us could be subject to statutory or contractual restrictions.

Our right to receive any assets of any of our future subsidiaries upon their liquidation or reorganization, and therefore the right of the holders of the exchange notes to participate in those assets, will be structurally subordinated to the claims of the applicable subsidiary's creditors, including bank and trade creditors. This means that the holders of the subsidiary debt would have a claim prior to that of the holders of the exchange notes with respect to the assets of that subsidiary. In addition, even if we were a creditor of any of our subsidiaries, our right as a creditor would be subordinate to any security interest in the assets of our subsidiaries and any debt of our subsidiaries senior to that held by us.

In the event of our bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization or other winding up, the assets that secure the obligations of our subsidiaries under credit facilities will not be available to pay obligations under the exchange notes unless and until payment in full of the applicable subsidiary's obligations.

Our tax rate may be increased and/or tax laws affecting us can change that may have an adverse impact on our cash flows and profitability.

The rates of federal, state, local, and international taxes applicable to the industries in which we operate, including production taxes paid by our subsidiaries often fluctuate and could be increased by the respective taxing authorities. In addition, the tax laws, rules and regulations that affect our business could change. Any such increase or change could adversely impact our cash flows and profitability.

With crude oil and gasoline prices surging to record highs after Hurricane Katrina, a number of bills have been recently introduced in the U.S. House of Representatives and the U.S. Senate that would exact a "windfall profit tax" on oil companies on excessive profits. If enacted in a form applicable to natural gas sales or production, such proposed bills could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations by increasing our income or other tax expenses.

If we fail to maintain good relations with our workforce we may experience labor disputes which may disrupt our operations causing us to lose revenues and customers.

We collectively bargain with labor unions that represent a number of our employees. When the current collective bargaining agreements expire, failure to reach an agreement could result in strikes or other labor protests which could disrupt our operations. If we were to experience a strike or work stoppage, in some cases it would be difficult for us to find a sufficient number of employees with the necessary skills to replace the striking employees. We cannot assure you that we will not encounter strikes or other types of conflicts with our personnel. Such disputes could disrupt our operations by slowing our drilling program or inhibiting our ability to adequately service our distribution customers, either of which could cause us to lose revenues and customers and might have permanent effects on our business.

Risks Related to the Exchange Notes

If you do not exchange your original notes, they may be difficult to resell.

It may be difficult for you to sell the original notes that are not exchanged in the exchange offer, because any original notes not exchanged will remain subject to the restrictions on transfer provided for in Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). These restrictions on transfer of your original notes exist because we issued the original notes pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The original notes that are not exchanged for the exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer will remain restricted securities. Accordingly, such original notes may be resold only:

to us (upon redemption of the notes or otherwise);

pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act;

so long as the original notes are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act to a qualified institutional buyer within the meaning of Rule 144A in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A;

outside the United States to a foreign person pursuant to the exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Regulation S under the Securities Act;

pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act provided by Rule 144 thereunder (if available); or

pursuant to another available exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, in each case in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any state of the United States.

Except as provided in this exchange offer, we do not intend to register the original notes under the Securities Act. To the extent any original notes are tendered and accepted in the exchange offer, the trading market, if any, for the original notes that remain outstanding after the exchange offer would be adversely affected due to a reduction in market liquidity.

If no trading market develops for the exchange notes, you may not be able to resell your exchange notes at their fair market value or at all.

Currently, there is no public trading market for the exchange notes. If no active trading market develops, you may not be able to resell your exchange notes at their fair market value or at all. Future trading prices of the exchange notes will depend on many factors including, among other things, our ability to effect the exchange offer, prevailing interest rates, our operating results and the market for similar securities. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of or trading market for the exchange notes. We do not intend to apply for listing the exchange notes on any securities exchange.

Redemption may adversely affect your return on the exchange notes.

The exchange notes are redeemable at our option, and therefore we may choose to redeem the exchange notes at times when prevailing interest rates are relatively low. As a result, you may not be able to reinvest the proceeds you receive from the redemption in a comparable security at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on your exchange notes being redeemed.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference contain certain statements that are, or may be considered to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Statements that do not relate strictly to historical or current facts are forward-looking and usually identified by the use of words such as "should," "anticipate," "estimate," "forecasts," "approximate," "expect," "may," "will," "project," "intend," "plan," "believe" and other words of similar meaning in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial matters. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus include the expectations of plans, strategies, objectives, and growth and our anticipated financial and operational performance, including guidance regarding our drilling program, production volumes, and earnings. A variety of factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in our forward-looking statements. The risks and uncertainties that may affect the operations, performance and results of our business and forward-looking statements include, among other things, those matters discussed under the caption "Risk Factors," as well as the following:

the impact of adverse weather conditions on commodity prices, our utility operations and our well drilling program; the volatility of the price of natural gas and the effect of changing prices on our revenues, hedging, well drilling activities, production taxes and collections; the need for, and availability and cost of, financing, including changes to our debt ratings by S&P and Moody's; the implementation and execution of operational enhancements and cost control initiatives; the effect of curtailments or other disruptions in production and gathering; the substance, timing and availability of regulatory and legislative actions, initiatives and proceedings; our success in implementing acquisition or divestiture activities; our ability to develop, produce, gather, and market reserves, including the ability to substantially increase well drilling activity; the inherent uncertainty of estimating gas reserves and projecting future rates of production and reserve development; our ability to acquire and apply technology to operations; the impact of competitive factors, including consolidation in the utility industry; our ability to retain our key personnel and maintain good working relations with our represented employees; changes in the market price of our common stock and our peer group common stock; general economic and political conditions; changes in accounting rules or their interpretation; and

other factors discussed in other reports filed by us from time to time.

The factors discussed under the heading "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this prospectus are not necessarily all of the important factors that could cause our results to differ materially from expected results. Other factors could cause actual results to vary materially from expected results. Forward-

15

looking statements speak only as of the dates they were made and we undertake no obligation to update them, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. You are advised to consult any additional disclosures we may make in our reports filed with the SEC.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

We are incorporating by reference in this prospectus the documents we file with the SEC. This means that we are disclosing important information to you by referring to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede the information contained in this prospectus. We incorporate by reference the following documents:

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004;

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2005, June 30, 2005 and September 30, 2005;

Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on January 28, February 10, March 1, July 18, August 17 and September 27, 2005;

Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A as filed on March 1, 2005; and

All documents filed by us with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of the exchange offer pursuant to this prospectus.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated by reference, or deemed to be incorporated by reference, in this prospectus shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document which also is incorporated by reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

As used in this prospectus, the term "prospectus" means this prospectus, including the documents incorporated by reference, as the same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time. Statements contained in this prospectus as to the contents of any contract or other document referred to in this prospectus do not purport to be complete, and where reference is made to the particular provisions of such contract or other document, such provisions are qualified in all respects by reference to all of the provisions of such contract or other document. We will provide without charge to each person to whom a copy of this prospectus has been delivered, on the written or oral request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which have been or may be incorporated in this prospectus by reference (other than exhibits to such documents unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference in any such documents) and a copy of any or all other contracts or documents which are referred to in this prospectus. You may request a copy of these filings at the address and telephone number set forth under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

	E	Months nded mber 30,	Years Ended December 31,					
	2005	2004(1)	2004(1)	2003	2002	2001	2000	
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	8.39	11.71	10.02	6.42	6.73	5.75	2.67	

⁽¹⁾ In the second quarter of 2004, Westport Resources Corporation and Kerr-McGee Corporation completed a merger. We recognized a gain of \$217.2 million on the exchange of the Westport shares for Kerr-McGee shares in the merger. If this gain is removed from our earnings, the earnings to fixed charge ratio for the nine-months ended September 30, 2004 and for the year ended December 31, 2004 would be 5.87 and 5.76, respectively.

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is calculated as follows:

(earnings) (fixed charges)

For purposes of calculating the ratios, earnings consist of:

income before income taxes, discontinued operations, extraordinary charges and cumulative effect of accounting changes;

plus fixed charges;

plus minority interest in income of majority owned subsidiaries;

plus amortization of capitalized interest;

minus capitalized interest; and

minus losses recognized in pre-tax income of less than 50% owned persons.

For purposes of calculating the ratios, fixed charges consist of:

interest on debt:

amortization of debt expense;

capitalized interest; and

the interest portion of rental expense on operating leases.

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

Terms of the Exchange Offer; Period for Tendering Outstanding Original Notes

On September 30, 2005, we sold the original notes to Banc of America Securities LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Harris Nesbit Corp. These initial purchasers subsequently resold the original notes to qualified institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act and outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act. When we sold the original notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers. The registration rights agreement requires that we register the exchange notes with the SEC and offer to exchange the registered exchange notes for the outstanding original notes sold on September 30, 2005.

In the event that:

the exchange offer registration statement is not filed with the SEC on or before 120 days after the date of issuance of the original notes or the shelf registration statement is not filed with the SEC on or before the shelf filing date;

the exchange offer registration statement is not declared effective within 180 days after the date of issuance of the original notes or the shelf registration statement is not declared effective within 90 days after the shelf filing date;

the exchange offer is not consummated on or before 210 days after the date of issuance of the original notes; or

the shelf registration statement is filed and declared effective by the dates required but thereafter ceases to be effective, at any time that we are obligated to maintain its effectiveness, or the prospectus contained therein ceases to be usable and such failure to remain effective or be usable exists for more than 30 days (whether or not successive) within any 12-month period;

we will be obligated to pay additional interest to each holder of transfer restricted securities, during the period of one or more registration defaults, in an amount equal to 0.25% per year of the principal amount of the original notes constituting transfer restricted securities held by the holder during the first 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of the registration default, increasing by an additional 0.25% per year during each subsequent 90-day period, up to a maximum additional interest rate of 0.50% per year until all registration defaults have been cured. We will pay the additional interest on regular interest payment dates. Additional interest only accrues during a registration default.

We will accept any original notes that you validly tender and do not withdraw before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , 200 ("expiration date"). Subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000, we will issue \$1,000 of principal amount of exchange notes in exchange for each \$1,000 principal amount of your outstanding original notes. You may tender some or all of your original notes in the exchange offer, but only in integral multiples of \$1,000.

The form and terms of the exchange notes are the same as the form and terms of the outstanding original notes except that:

the exchange notes being issued in the exchange offer will be registered under the Securities Act and will not have legends restricting their transfer;

the provisions for payment of additional interest in case of non-registration will be eliminated;

the exchange notes being issued in the exchange offer will not have the registration rights applicable to the original notes; and

interest on the exchange notes will accrue from the last interest date to which interest was paid on your original notes or, if none, from the date of issuance.

Outstanding original notes that we accept for exchange will not accrue interest after we complete the exchange offer. The exchange offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date, unless we extend it. If we extend the exchange offer prior to the expiration of the exchange offer, we will issue a notice by press release or other public announcement before 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date.

If we extend the exchange offer prior to the expiration of the exchange offer, original notes that you have previously tendered will still be subject to the exchange offer, and we may accept them.

To the extent we are legally permitted to do so, we reserve the right prior to the expiration of the exchange offer, in our sole discretion:

to delay accepting your original notes;

to terminate the exchange offer and not accept any original notes for exchange if any of the conditions have not been satisfied; or

to amend the exchange offer in any manner.

Any such delay in acceptance, termination or amendment will be followed promptly by oral or written notice to the registered holders of original notes.

Without limiting the manner by which we may choose to give notice of any extension, delay in acceptance, amendment or termination of the exchange offer, we will have no obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any public announcement, other than by making a timely release to a financial news service.

We will promptly return your original notes without expense to you after the exchange offer expires or terminates if we do not accept them for exchange for any reason.

Procedures for Tendering Original Notes

Only you may tender your original notes in the exchange offer. To tender your original notes in the exchange offer, you must:

complete, sign, and date the letter of transmittal which accompanied this prospectus, or a copy of it;

have the signature on the letter of transmittal guaranteed if required by the letter of transmittal; and

mail, fax or otherwise deliver the letter of transmittal or copy to the exchange agent;

OR

if you tender your original notes under DTC's book-entry transfer procedures, arrange for DTC to transmit an agent's message to the exchange agent on or before the expiration date.

In addition, either:

the exchange agent must receive certificates for outstanding original notes and the letter of transmittal;

the exchange agent must receive a timely confirmation of a book-entry transfer of your original notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC, along with the agent's message; or

you must comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

An agent's message is a computer-generated message transmitted to the exchange agent by DTC through its Automated Tender Offer Program. To tender your original notes effectively, a tendering

party must make sure that the exchange agent receives a letter of transmittal and other required documents or an agent's message before the expiration date. When you tender your outstanding original notes and we accept them, the tender will be a binding agreement between you and us in accordance with the terms and conditions in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal.

The method of delivery to the exchange agent of original notes, letters of transmittal, and all other required documents is at your election and risk. We recommend that you use an overnight or hand delivery service instead of mail. If you do deliver by mail, we recommend that you use registered mail, properly insured, with return receipt requested. In all cases, you should allow enough time to make sure your documents reach the exchange agent before the expiration date. Do not send a letter of transmittal or notes directly to us. You may request your brokers, dealers, commercial banks, trust companies, or nominees to make the exchange on your behalf.

Unless you are a registered holder who requests that the exchange notes be mailed to you and issued in your name, or unless you are an Eligible Institution, you must have your signature on a letter of transmittal or a notice of withdrawal guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. An "Eligible Institution" is a firm which is a financial institution that is a member of a registered national securities exchange or a participant in the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program, the New York Stock Exchange Medallion Signature Program or the Stock Exchanges Medallion Program.

If the person who signs the letter of transmittal and tenders the original notes is not the registered holder of the original notes, the registered holders must endorse the original notes or sign a written instrument of transfer or exchange that is included with the original notes, with the registered holder's signature guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. We will decide whether the endorsement or transfer instrument is satisfactory.

We will decide all questions about the validity, form, eligibility, acceptance, and withdrawal of tendered original notes, and our determination will be final and binding on you. We reserve the absolute right to:

reject all tenders of original notes not properly tendered;

refuse to accept any original note if, in our judgment or the judgment of our counsel, the acceptance would be unlawful; and

waive any defects or irregularities or conditions of the exchange offer prior to the expiration date. This includes the right to waive the ineligibility of all note holders who seek to tender original notes in the exchange offer. Any such waivers shall apply to all holders of original notes on the same terms and conditions. If necessary, we will extend the exchange offer so that the offer will remain open for at least five business days following any waiver of a condition by us that constitutes a material change to the terms of the exchange offer. See "Exchange Offer Conditions to the Exchange Offer."

Our interpretation of the terms and conditions of the exchange offer, including the instructions in the letter of transmittal, will be final and binding on all parties. You must cure any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of original notes as we will determine. Neither we, the exchange agent nor any other person will incur any liability for failure to notify you of any defect or irregularity with respect to your tender of original notes.

If trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity sign the letter of transmittal or any notes or power of attorney on your behalf, those persons must indicate their capacity when signing, and submit to us with the letter of transmittal satisfactory evidence demonstrating their authority to act on your behalf.

To participate in the exchange offer, we require that you represent to us that:

you or any other person acquiring exchange notes for your original notes in the exchange offer is acquiring them in the ordinary course of business;

neither you nor any other person acquiring exchange notes in exchange for your original notes is engaging in or intends to engage in a distribution of the exchange notes issued in the exchange offer;

neither you nor any other person acquiring exchange notes in exchange for your original notes has an arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of exchange notes issued in the exchange offer;

neither you nor any other person acquiring exchange notes in exchange for your original notes is our "affiliate" as defined under Rule 405 of the Securities Act; and

if you or another person acquiring exchange notes for your original notes is a broker-dealer

you will receive exchange notes for your own account;

you acquired exchange notes as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities; and

you acknowledge that you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of your exchange notes which meets the requirements of the Securities Act and which may be this prospectus.

The delivery of an agent's message to the exchange agent on your behalf will be deemed a representation by you to the effects stated above.

By its acceptance of the exchange offer, any broker-dealer that receives exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer agrees to notify us in writing before using the prospectus in connection with the resale or transfer of exchange notes. The broker-dealer further acknowledges and agrees that, upon receipt of notice from us of the happening of any event which makes any statement in the prospectus untrue in any material respect or which requires the making of any changes in the prospectus to make the statements in the prospectus not misleading or which may impose upon us disclosure obligations that may have a material adverse effect on us, which notice we agree to deliver promptly to the broker-dealer, the broker-dealer will suspend use of the prospectus until we have notified the broker-dealer that delivery of the prospectus may resume and have furnished to the broker-dealer copies of any amendment or supplement to the prospectus. We have agreed in the registration rights agreement that for a period of 180 days after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer who requests it in writing for use in connection with any such resale.

If you are our "affiliate," as defined under Rule 405 of the Securities Act, you are a broker-dealer who acquired your original notes in the initial offering and not as a result of market-making or trading activities, or if you are engaged in or intend to engage in or have an arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in a distribution of exchange notes acquired in the exchange offer, you or that person:

may not rely on the applicable interpretations of the staff of the SEC; and

must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act when reselling the exchange notes.

Broker-dealers who cannot make the representations in the fifth bullet point of the fourth paragraph above cannot use this exchange offer prospectus in connection with resales of exchange notes.

Acceptance of Original Notes for Exchange; Delivery of Exchange Notes Issued in the Exchange Offer

We will accept validly tendered original notes when the conditions to the exchange offer have been satisfied or waived by us prior to the expiration of the exchange offer. All conditions to the exchange offer must be satisfied or waived by us prior to the expiration of the exchange offer. If necessary, we will extend the exchange offer so that the offer will remain open for at least five business days following any waiver of a condition by us that constitutes a material change to the terms of the exchange offer. See "The Exchange Offer Conditions to the Exchange Offer." We will have accepted your validly tendered original notes when we have given oral or written notice to the exchange agent. The exchange agent will act as agent for the tendering holders for the purpose of receiving the exchange notes from us. If we do not accept any tendered original notes for exchange because of an invalid tender or other valid reason, the exchange agent will promptly return the certificates, without expense, to the tendering holder. If a holder has tendered original notes by book-entry transfer, we will credit the notes to an account maintained with DTC. We will return certificates or credit the account at DTC promptly after the exchange offer terminates or expires.

Book-Entry Transfers

The exchange agent will make a request to establish an account at DTC for purposes of the exchange offer within two business days after the date of this prospectus. Any financial institution that is a participant in DTC's systems must make book-entry delivery of outstanding original notes by causing DTC to transfer those outstanding original notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC in accordance with DTC's Automated Tender Offer Procedures. The participant should transmit its acceptance to DTC on or before the expiration date or comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures described below. DTC will verify acceptance, execute a book-entry transfer of the tendered outstanding original notes into the exchange agent's account at DTC and then send to the exchange agent confirmation of the book-entry transfer. The confirmation of the book-entry transfer will include an agent's message confirming that DTC has received an express acknowledgment from the participant that the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the letter of transmittal and that we may enforce the letter of transmittal against the participant. Delivery of exchange notes issued in the exchange offer may be effected through book-entry transfer at DTC. However, the letter of transmittal or facsimile of it or an agent's message, with any required signature guarantees and any other required documents, must:

be transmitted to and received by the exchange agent at the address listed below under "Exchange Agent" on or before the expiration date; or

the guaranteed delivery procedures described below must be complied with.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

If you are a registered holder of outstanding original notes who desires to tender original notes but your original notes are not immediately available, or time will not permit your original notes or other required documents to reach the exchange agent before the expiration date, or the procedure for book-entry transfer cannot be completed on a timely basis, you may effect a tender if:

you tender the original notes through an Eligible Institution;

before the expiration date, the exchange agent receives from the Eligible Institution a notice of guaranteed delivery in the form we have provided ("Notice of Guaranteed Delivery"). The Notice of Guaranteed Delivery will state the name and address of the holder of the original notes being tendered and the amount of original notes being tendered, that the tender is being made, and guarantee that within five New York Stock Exchange trading days after the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery is signed, the certificates for all physically tendered original notes, in

proper form for transfer, or a book-entry confirmation, together with a properly completed and signed letter of transmittal with any required signature guarantees, and any other documents required by the letter of transmittal will be deposited by the Eligible Institution with the exchange agent; and

the certificates for all physically tendered outstanding original notes, in proper form for transfer, or a book-entry confirmation, together with a properly completed and signed letter of transmittal with any required signature guarantees, and all other documents required by the letter of transmittal, are received by the exchange agent within five New York Stock Exchange trading days after the date of execution of the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

Withdrawal Rights

You may withdraw your tender of original notes at any time before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date.

For a withdrawal to be effective, you must make sure that, before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date, the exchange agent receives a written notice of withdrawal at one of the addresses below or, if you are a participant of DTC, an electronic message using DTC's Automated Tender Offer Program.

A notice of withdrawal must:

specify the name of the person that tendered the original notes to be withdrawn;

identify the original notes to be withdrawn, including the principal amount of the original notes;

be signed by the holder in the same manner as the original signature on the letter of transmittal by which the original notes were tendered or be accompanied by documents of transfer; and

if you have transmitted certificates for outstanding original notes, specify the name in which the original notes are registered, if different from that of the withdrawing holder, and identify the serial numbers of the certificates.

If you have tendered original notes under the book-entry transfer procedure, your notice of withdrawal must also specify the name and number of an account at DTC to which your withdrawn original notes can be credited.

We will decide all questions as to the validity, form, and eligibility of the notices and our determination will be final and binding on all parties. Any tendered original notes that you withdraw will not be considered to have been validly tendered. We will return any outstanding original notes that have been tendered but not exchanged, or credit them to DTC account, promptly after withdrawal, rejection of tender or termination of the exchange offer. You may retender properly withdrawn original notes before the expiration date by following one of the procedures described above.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer

We are not required to accept for exchange, or to issue exchange notes in exchange for, any outstanding original notes. We may terminate or amend the exchange offer prior to the expiration of the exchange offer, if at any time before the acceptance of original notes:

any federal law, statute, rule or regulation has been adopted or enacted which, in our judgment, would reasonably be expected to impair our ability to proceed with the exchange offer;

any stop order is threatened or in effect with respect to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939; or

there is a change in the current interpretation by the staff of the SEC which permits holders who have made the required representations to us to resell, offer for resale, or otherwise transfer exchange notes issued in the exchange offer without registration of the exchange notes and delivery of a prospectus, as discussed above.

These conditions are for our sole benefit and we may assert or waive them at any time and for any reason prior to the expiration of the exchange offer. However, the exchange offer will remain open for at least five business days following any waiver of the preceding conditions. Our failure to exercise any of the foregoing rights will not be a waiver of our rights.

Exchange Agent

You should direct all signed letters of transmittal to the exchange agent, The Bank of New York. You should direct questions, requests for assistance, and requests for additional copies of this prospectus, the letter of transmittal, and the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to the exchange agent addressed as follows:

By Registered or Certified Mail:

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Operations Reorganization Unit 101 Barclay Street 7E New York, NY 10286 Attention: Reorganization Unit

By Overnight Courier:

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Operations Reorganization Unit 101 Barclay Street 7E New York, NY 10286 Attention: Reorganization Unit

By Hand Delivery:

The Bank of New York Corporate Trust Operations Reorganization Unit 101 Barclay Street Lobby Window New York, NY 10286 Attention: Reorganization Unit

By Facsimile:

(212) 298-1915 Attention: Reorganization Unit Confirmed by telephone: (212) 815-6331

Delivery or fax of the letter of transmittal to an address or number other than those above is not a valid delivery of the letter of transmittal.

Fees and Expenses

We will not make any payment to brokers, dealers, or others soliciting acceptances of the exchange offer except for reimbursement of mailing expenses. The expenses to be incurred in connection with the exchange offer will be paid by us. These expenses will include reasonable and customary fees and out-of-pocket expenses of the exchange agent and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by brokerage houses and other fiduciaries in forwarding materials to beneficial holders in connection with the exchange offer.

Accounting Treatment

The exchange notes will be recorded at the same carrying value as the existing original notes, as reflected in our accounting records on the date of exchange. Accordingly, we will recognize no gain or loss for accounting purposes. The expenses of the exchange offer will be expensed over the term of the exchange notes.

Transfer Taxes

If you tender outstanding original notes for exchange you will not be obligated to pay any transfer taxes. However, if you instruct us to register exchange notes in the name of, or request that your original notes not tendered or not accepted in the exchange offer be returned to, a person other than you, you will be responsible for paying any transfer tax owed.

You May Suffer Adverse Consequences if You Fail to Exchange Outstanding Original Notes

Original notes that are not tendered or that are tendered but not accepted by us will, following completion of the exchange offer, continue to be subject to existing restrictions upon transfer under the Securities Act. Upon completion of the exchange offer, you will no longer be entitled to any exchange or registration rights with respect to your original notes except under limited circumstances where we would be required to file a shelf registration statement under the terms of the registration rights agreement. Accordingly, if you do not tender your notes in the exchange offer, your ability to sell your original notes could be adversely affected. Once we have completed the exchange offer, holders who have not tendered notes will not continue to be entitled to any increase in interest rate that the indenture provides for should we not complete the exchange offer.

Holders of the exchange notes issued in the exchange offer and original notes that are not tendered in the exchange offer will vote together as a single class under the indenture.

Consequences of Exchanging Outstanding Original Notes

If you make the representations that we discuss above, we believe that you may offer, sell or otherwise transfer the exchange notes to another party without registration of your notes or delivery of a prospectus.

We base our belief on interpretations by the staff of the SEC in no-action letters issued to third parties. If you cannot make these representations, you cannot rely on this interpretation by the SEC's staff and you must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with a resale of the original notes. A broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account in exchange for its outstanding original notes must acknowledge that it acquired the original notes as a result of market making activities or other trading activities and that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the exchange notes. Broker-dealers who can make these representations may use this exchange offer prospectus, as supplemented or amended, in connection with resales of exchange notes issued in the exchange offer. We have agreed in the registration rights agreement that for a period of 180 days after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer who requests it in the letter of transmittal for use in connection with any such resale.

However, because the SEC has not issued a no-action letter in connection with this exchange offer, we cannot be sure that the staff of the SEC would make a similar determination regarding the exchange offer as it has made in similar circumstances.

Shelf Registration

The registration rights agreement requires that we file a shelf registration statement if:

we are not permitted to effect the exchange offer as contemplated by this prospectus because of any change in law or applicable interpretations of the law by the staff of the SEC;

for any other reason the exchange offer is not consummated within 210 days after the date of issuance of the original notes;

any initial purchaser so requests with respect to original notes held by the initial purchasers that are not eligible to be exchanged for exchange notes in the exchange offer;

any applicable law or interpretations do not permit any holder of original notes to participate in the exchange offer; or

any holder of original notes that participates in the exchange offer does not receive freely transferable exchange notes in exchange for tendered original notes.

Original notes will be subject to restrictions on transfer until:

the date on which that original note has been exchanged for a freely transferable exchange note in the exchange offer;

the date on which that original note has been effectively registered under the Securities Act and disposed of in accordance with the shelf registration statement; or

the date on which that original note is distributed to the public pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act or may be sold under Rule 144(k) under the Securities Act.

Regulatory Requirements

The completion of the exchange offer is not contingent upon or subject to any federal or state regulatory compliance or approvals.

26

USE OF PROCEEDS

We are making the exchange offer to satisfy our obligation under the registration rights agreement we entered into with the initial purchasers when we issued the original notes. We will not receive any cash proceeds from the issuance of the exchange notes. In consideration for issuing the exchange notes, we will receive an equal principal amount of original notes. The original notes surrendered in exchange for the exchange notes will be retired and cancelled.

The proceeds from the issuance and sale of the original notes were approximately \$148,009,500 after deducting initial purchasers' commissions and other estimated offering expenses. The proceeds were used to reduce our outstanding commercial paper.

27

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our consolidated capitalization as of September 30, 2005. This table should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes and the other financial information incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

	As of September 30, 2005	
	(in the	Unaudited) Dusands except Shares er share data)
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	
Short-term debt and obligations:		
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	3,623
Short-term loans		437,502
Current portion of project financing obligation		33,024
Total short-term debt and obligations	\$	474,149
Long-term debt:		
7.75% Debentures(1)	\$	115,000
Medium-Term Notes (Series A, B and C)(2)		98,434
5.15% Notes due 2012(1)		200,000
5.15% Notes due 2018(1)		200,000
5% Notes due 2015(1)		150,000
Other		862
Other long term obligations:		
Project financing obligations		81,153
Total long term debt and obligations	\$	845,449
Common stockholders' equity:		
Common stock, no par value, 320,000 shares authorized; 120,873 shares		
outstanding	\$	356,975
Treasury stock, shares at cost: 28,135		(453,209)
Retained earnings		1,200,178
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(837,205)
Total common stockholders' equity	\$	266,739

(1) The 7.75% Debentures due 2026, the 5.15% Notes due 2012, the 5.15% Notes due 2018 and the 5% Notes due 2015 were issued under the same indenture under which the exchange notes offered in this prospectus are to be issued and are subject to the same covenants, defaults and other terms applicable to the notes offered by this prospectus.

The Series A, Series B and Series C medium term notes were issued pursuant to an indenture between us and Bankers Trust Company, as trustee, dated as of April 1, 1983. The Bankers Trust indenture does not have any restrictions on additional funded indebtedness or other covenants that would be impacted by the issuance of the exchange notes offered by this prospectus.

SUMMARY SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following year ended and annual selected financial data are derived from the consolidated financial statements of Equitable Resources, Inc. which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm. The data should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The selected financial information presented for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 is unaudited. In the opinion of management, the unaudited selected financial information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited selected consolidated financial information and includes all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly our results of operations and financial position as of the dates and for the periods presented. The unaudited selected financial information for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 is not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year ending December 31, 2005. You should read the following information in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes incorporated in this prospectus by reference.

	N	Nine Months Ended September 30,		Years Ended December 31,					
		2005	2004	2004		2003	2002	2001	2000
	(Un	audited)							
				(in thousand	ds ex	ccept per share	e data)		
Results of Operations Data:									
Net operating revenues(1)	\$	558,856 \$	492,498 \$	672,469	\$	618,571 \$	562,705 \$	567,608 \$	576,951
Operations and maintenance		71,599	59,954	87,988		76,319	73,430	80,607	103,020
Production		44,523	32,587	43,274		35,687	27,111	34,500	45,870
Selling, general and administrative expense		119,354	103,560	153,493		126,210	109,825	124,743	116,050
Interest expense		37,602	35,953	49,247		45,766	38,787	41,098	75,661
Gain on exchange of Westport/Kerr McGee									
shares			217,212	217,212					
Equity earnings (losses) from nonconsolidated									
investments and minority interest		9,144	(39,358)	(38,558)		(5,808)	(10,566)	26,101	25,161
Income from continuing operations before									
income taxes and cumulative effect of									
accounting change		298,219	360,088	422,548		255,349	228,218	239,531	163,344
Provisions for income taxes		111,003	123,508	142,694		81,792	77,592	87,723	57,171
Income from continuing operations		187,216	236,580	279,854		173,557	150,626	151,808	106,173
Net income	\$	187,216 \$	236,580 \$	279,854	\$	170,001 \$	154,107 \$	151,808 \$	106,173
Cash Flow Data:									
Net cash (used in) provided by operating									
activities	\$	(451,688) \$	133,371 \$	176,363	\$	121,030 \$	214,511 \$	129,869 \$	361,153
Net cash (used in) provided by investing									
activities		285,137	(90,943)	(157,899)		(214,336)	(169,160)	(125,761)	(363,008)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing									
activities		166,551	(79,762)	(55,798)		112,892	(57,225)	(26,509)	35,847
Other Data:									
EBITDA(2)	\$	406,141	461,227 \$		\$	375,697 \$	336,453 \$	353,859 \$	336,782
EBITDA(2) to interest expense		10.8	12.8	11.3		8.2	8.7	8.6	4.5
Cash dividends declared per share of common									
stock(3)		0.63	0.53	0.72		0.485	0.335	0.315	0.295
Total dividends paid		74,615	65,889	89,364		60,419	41,809	40,356	38,490
Capital expenditures		194,113	134,975	202,351		221,499	218,494	132,679	123,727
Business acquisitions		57,500				44,200			677,235
Depreciation, depletion and amortization		70,320	65,186	83,063		78,138	69,448	73,230	97,777

Operating revenues for years prior to 2002 have been reclassified to reflect all gains and losses associated with our energy trading activities on a net basis as required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) in EITF No. 02-3, "Recognition and Reporting of Gains and Losses on Energy Trading Contracts under EITF Issues No. 98-10 and No. 00-17."

Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") is presented as a measure of our ability to service our debt and to make capital expenditures. EBITDA is not a measure of operating results and is not presented in

our consolidated financial statements and is not considered a qualified financial measurement under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We have provided the following table to reconcile EBITDA to net income:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Years Ended December 31,

	2005	2004		2004	2003	2002	2001	2000
Net Income	\$ 187,216	\$ 236,580) \$	279,854	\$ 170,001	\$ 154,107	\$ 151,808	\$ 106,173
Cumulative effect of accounting change						5,519		
Income (loss) from discontinued operations						(9,000)		
Interest	37,602	35,953	3	49,247	45,766	38,787	41,098	75,661
Taxes	111,003	123,508	3	142,694	81,792	77,592	87,723	57,171
Depreciation, depletion and amortization	70,320	65,180	5	83,063	78,138	69,448	73,230	97,777
EBITDA	\$ 406,141	\$ 461,227	7 \$	554,858	\$ 375,697	\$ 336,453	\$ 353,859	\$ 336,782

(3) Adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split paid September 1, 2005 and the two-for-one stock split paid June 11, 2001.

DESCRIPTION OF EXCHANGE NOTES

The following description is only a summary of certain provisions of the Indenture and the exchange notes, copies of which are available upon request to us at the address set forth under "Where You Can Find More Information." In this summary, the term Equitable refers only to Equitable Resources, Inc. and not to any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. You can find the definitions of capitalized terms used in this description under the subheading "Certain Definitions." Certain defined terms used in this description but not defined below under "Certain Definitions" have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. We urge you to read the Indenture and the exchange notes, together with the registration rights agreement, because they, and not this description, define your rights as holders of the exchange notes.

General

The exchange notes are to be a series of debt securities issued under an Indenture, dated as of July 1, 1996 (the "Indenture") between Equitable and The Bank of New York (as successor to Bank of Montreal Trust Company), as Trustee (the "Trustee"). The terms of the exchange notes were established in an officer's declaration pursuant to the authorization of our board of directors in accordance with the Indenture.

The exchange notes will mature on October 1, 2015. Interest on the exchange notes will accrue at the rate of 5% per year and will be payable semi-annually in arrears on each April 1, and October 1, commencing on April 1, 2006. Equitable will make each interest payment to the holders of record of the exchange notes on the immediately preceding March 15 and September 15. The registered holder of an exchange note will be treated as the owner of it for all purposes. Only registered holders will have rights under the Indenture.

The interest rate on the original notes and exchange notes is subject to increase in certain circumstances. We will pay additional cash interest on the applicable original notes and exchange notes:

if we fail to file a registration statement with the SEC on or prior to the 120th day after the issue date of the original notes;

if the registration statement is not declared effective by the SEC on or prior to the 180th day after the issue date of the original notes;

if the exchange offer is not consummated on or before the 210th day after the issue date of the original notes;

if obligated to file a shelf registration statement, we fail to file a shelf registration statement with the SEC on or prior to the shelf filing date;

if obligated to file a shelf registration statement, the shelf registration statement is not declared effective on or prior to the 90th day after the shelf filing date; or

if after the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part or the shelf registration statement, as the case may be, is declared effective, such registration statement thereafter ceases to be effective or usable.

We will be required to pay additional interest to each holder of original notes and exchange notes, as applicable, during the period of the above registration defaults in an amount equal to 0.25% per year of the principal amount of the notes held by such holder during the first 90-day period immediately following the registration default, increasing by an additional 0.25% per year during each subsequent 90-day period, up to a maximum additional interest rate of 0.50% per year until all registration defaults have been cured.

The exchange notes will be senior, unsecured obligations of Equitable and will rank equally with all of Equitable's other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. The exchange notes will be represented by Global Securities, which will be deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC, New

York, New York, and registered in the name of DTC's nominee. Each note represented by a Global Security is referred to herein as a "Book-Entry Note."

The Indenture does not limit the amount of exchange notes or other debt securities of Equitable that may be issued under the Indenture. Equitable has issued, and is permitted to continue to issue, additional series of debt securities under the Indenture. Equitable may also at any time and from time to time, without notice to or consent of the holders, issue additional debt securities of the same tenor, coupon and other terms as the exchange notes, so that such debt securities and the exchange notes offered pursuant to this prospectus shall form a single series. References herein to the exchange notes shall include (unless the context otherwise requires) any further exchange notes issued as described in this paragraph.

Unless otherwise provided and except with respect to Book-Entry Notes, principal of and premium, if any, and interest, if any, on the exchange notes will be payable, and the transfer of exchange notes will be registrable, at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, except that, at the option of Equitable, interest may be paid by mailing a check to, or by wire transfer to, the holders of the notes entitled thereto. For a description of payments of principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, and transfer of, Book-Entry Notes and exchanges of Global Securities representing Book-Entry Notes, see "Book-Entry, Delivery and Form."

The exchange notes will be issued only in fully registered form without coupons and only in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof. No service charge will be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of the exchange notes, but Equitable may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Optional Redemption

We may redeem the exchange notes at our option, at any time or from time to time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the greater of:

100% of the principal amount of the exchange notes to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption; and

the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the exchange notes to be redeemed (exclusive of interest accrued to the date of redemption) discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30 day months) at the applicable Treasury Rate plus 15 basis points plus accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount being redeemed to the date of redemption.

For purposes of determining the early maturity payment and the optional redemption price, the following definitions are applicable:

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemption date for the exchange notes,

the yield, under the heading which represents the average for the immediately preceding week, appearing in the most recently published statistical release designated "H.15(519)" or any successor publication which is published weekly by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and which establishes yields on actively traded U.S. Treasury securities adjusted to constant maturity under the caption "Treasury Constant Maturities," for the maturity corresponding to the Comparable Treasury Issue (if no maturity is within three months before or after the remaining life (as defined below), yields for the two published maturities most closely corresponding to the Comparable Treasury Issue will be determined and the Treasury Rate shall be interpolated or extrapolated from those yields on a straight line basis, rounding to the nearest month); or

if the release referred to in the previous bullet (or any successor release) is not published during the week preceding the calculation date or does not contain the yields referred to above, the

rate per year equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated using a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for that redemption date.

The Treasury Rate will be calculated on the third business day preceding the redemption date.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the U.S. Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term ("remaining life") of the exchange notes that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining terms of the exchange notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date:

the average of four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, or

if the Independent Investment Banker is unable to obtain at least four such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations obtained by the Independent Investment Banker.

"Independent Investment Banker" means either Banc of America Securities LLC or J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as specified by us, or if these firms are unwilling or unable to select the applicable Comparable Treasury Issue, an independent investment banking institution of national standing appointed by us.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (1) Banc of America Securities LLC and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (and their respective successors), provided however, that if either of the foregoing shall cease to be a primary U.S. government securities dealer (a "Primary Treasury Dealer"), we will substitute therefore another Primary Treasury Dealer and (2) two other Primary Treasury Dealers selected by us after consultation with the Independent Investment Banker.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date for the exchange notes, an average, as determined by the Independent Investment Banker, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue for the exchange notes (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Independent Investment Banker at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third business day preceding such redemption date.

Notice of any redemption will be mailed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the redemption date to each registered holder of exchange notes to be redeemed. Unless we default in payment of the redemption price, on and after the redemption date, interest will cease to accrue on the exchange notes or portions of the exchange notes called for redemption. If fewer than all of the exchange notes are to be redeemed, the Trustee will select, not more than 60 days prior to the redemption date, the particular exchange notes or portions thereof for redemption from the outstanding exchange notes not previously called by such method as the Trustee deems fair and appropriate.

Except as set forth above, the exchange notes will not be redeemable by the Company prior to maturity and will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.

Certain Covenants

The Indenture contains certain covenants, including, among others, those described below. Except as set forth below, Equitable will not be restricted by the Indenture from incurring any type of indebtedness or other obligation, from paying dividends or making distributions on its capital stock or purchasing or redeeming its capital stock. In addition, the Indenture does not contain any provisions that would require Equitable to repurchase or redeem or otherwise modify the terms of any of the

exchange notes upon a change in control or other events involving Equitable which may adversely affect the creditworthiness of the exchange notes. The Indenture does not restrict the ability of Equitable or its subsidiaries to transfer assets to and among Equitable's subsidiaries.

Restriction on Liens

The Indenture provides that Equitable will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, issue, assume or guarantee any Debt which is secured by a mortgage, pledge, security interest or lien (any mortgage, pledge, security interest or lien being hereinafter referred to as a "lien" or "liens") upon any Principal Property of Equitable or of any Restricted Subsidiary or upon any shares of stock or Debt issued by any Restricted Subsidiary, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, without effectively providing that the exchange notes (together with, if Equitable so determines, any other indebtedness of or guaranty by Equitable or such Restricted Subsidiary then existing or thereafter created which is not subordinated to the exchange notes) will be secured equally and ratably with (or at Equitable's option, prior to) such secured Debt so long as such Debt is so secured; provided, however, that the foregoing will not restrict or apply to Debt secured by:

liens on property of, or shares of stock or Debt issued by, any Subsidiary existing at the time such Subsidiary becomes a Restricted Subsidiary; provided, that such lien has not been incurred in connection with the transfer by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary of a Principal Property to such Subsidiary unless Equitable, within 180 days of the effective date of such transfer, applies or causes a Restricted Subsidiary to apply an amount equal to the fair value, as determined by the Board of Directors, of such Principal Property at the time of such transfer, to the retirement of the exchange notes or other Debt of Equitable (other than Debt subordinated to the exchange notes), or Debt of any Restricted Subsidiary (other than Debt owed to Equitable or any Restricted Subsidiary), having a stated maturity:

more than 12 months from the date of such application;

which is extendable at the option of the obligor thereon to a date more than 12 months from the date of such application;

liens on any property or shares of stock or Debt existing at the time of acquisition thereof by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary, or liens to secure the payment of all or any part of the purchase price or construction cost thereof or to secure any Debt incurred prior to, at the time of, or within 180 days after, the acquisition of such property, shares of stock or Debt or the completion of any such construction, whichever is later, for the purpose of financing all or any part of the purchase price or construction cost thereof;

liens on any property to secure all or any part of the cost of development, construction, alteration, repair or improvement of all or any portion of such property, or to secure Debt incurred prior to, at the time of, or within 180 days after, the completion of such development, construction, alteration, repair or improvement, whichever is later, for the purpose of financing all or any part of such cost;

liens which secure Debt owed by a Restricted Subsidiary to Equitable or to another Restricted Subsidiary or by Equitable to a Restricted Subsidiary so long as the Debt is held by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary;

liens securing Debt of a corporation or other Person which becomes a successor of Equitable in accordance with the terms of the Indenture other than Debt incurred by such corporation or other Person in connection with a consolidation, merger or sale of assets in accordance with the terms of the Indenture;

liens on property of Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary in favor of the United States or any state thereof, or any department, agency of instrumentality or political subdivision of the United States or any state thereof, or in favor of any other country or any political subdivision thereof,

to secure partial, progress, advance or other payments pursuant to any contract or statute or to secure any Indebtedness incurred or guaranteed for the purpose of financing all or any part of the purchase price or the cost of construction, alteration, repair or improvement of the property subject to such liens (including, but not limited to, liens incurred in connection with pollution control, industrial revenue or similar financing), or in favor of any trustee or mortgagee for the benefit of holders of indebtedness of any such entity incurred for any such purpose;

liens securing Debt which is payable, both with respect to principal and interest, solely out of the proceeds of oil, gas, coal or other minerals to be produced from the property subject thereto and to be sold or delivered by Equitable or a Subsidiary, including any interest of the character commonly referred to as a "production payment";

liens created or assumed by a Subsidiary on oil, gas, coal or other mineral property, owned or leased by a Subsidiary, to secure Debt of such Subsidiary for the purpose of developing such property, including any interest of the character commonly referred to as a "production payment"; provided, however, that neither Equitable nor any Subsidiary shall assume or guarantee such Debt or otherwise be liable in respect thereof;

any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive extensions, renewals or replacements), in whole or in part, of any lien referred to in the foregoing bullets or of any Debt secured thereby; provided, that such extension, renewal or replacement lien is limited to all or any part of the same property that secured the lien extended, renewed or replaced (plus any improvements and construction on such property) and will secure at the time of such extension, renewal or replacement no larger amount of Debt and, in the case of the fourth bullet above, that the Debt being secured thereby is being secured for the same type of Person as the Debt being replaced.

The Indenture also provides that Equitable and any Restricted Subsidiary may issue debt secured by liens not permitted by the preceding bullets if at the time incurring such lien, the aggregate amount of the related Debt plus all other Debt of Equitable and its Restricted Subsidiaries secured by liens which would otherwise be subject to the foregoing restrictions after giving effect to the retirement of any Debt which is currently being retired (not including Debt permitted to be secured under the preceding bullets), plus the aggregate Attributable Debt (determined as of the time of incurring such lien) of Sale and Leaseback Transactions (other than Sale and Leaseback Transactions permitted by the first two bullets below) and in existence at the time of incurring such lien (less the aggregate amount of proceeds of such Sale and Leaseback Transactions which has been applied) in accordance with the third bullet below, does not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets.

Restriction on Sale and Leaseback Transactions

The Indenture further provides that Equitable will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, enter into any arrangement with any bank, insurance company or other lender or investor (other than Equitable or another Restricted Subsidiary) providing for the leasing as lessee by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary of any Principal Property (except a lease for a term not to exceed three years by the end of which term it is intended that the use of such Principal Property by the lessee will be discontinued and a lease which secures or relates to industrial revenue or pollution control bonds or similar, financing), which was or is owned by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary and which has been or is to be sold or transferred by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary to such Person more than 180 days after the completion of construction and commencement of full operation of such property by Equitable or such Restricted Subsidiary, to such lender or investor or to any Person to whom funds have been or are to be advanced by such lender or investor on the security of such Principal Property (herein referred to as a "Sale and Leaseback Transaction"), unless:

Equitable or such Restricted Subsidiary would, at the time of entering into such Sale and Leaseback Transaction, be entitled as described in the nine bullets set forth under "Restrictions on Liens" above, without equally and ratably securing the exchange notes, to issue, assume or

guarantee Debt secured by a lien on such Principal Property in the amount of the Attributable Debt arising from such Sale and Leaseback Transaction; or

the Attributable Debt of Equitable and its Restricted Subsidiaries in respect of such Sale and Leaseback Transaction and all other Sale and Leaseback Transactions (other than such Sale and Leaseback Transactions as are permitted as described in the bullet above or the bullet below), plus the aggregate principal amount of Debt secured by liens on Principal Properties then outstanding (not including any such Debt secured by liens described in the nine bullets set forth under "Restrictions on Liens" above) which do not equally and ratably secure the exchange notes, would not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets; or

Equitable, within 180 days after any such sale or transfer, applies or causes a Restricted Subsidiary to apply an amount equal to the greater of the net proceeds of such sale or transfer or the fair value, as determined by the Board of Directors, of the Principal Property so sold and leased back at the time of entering into such Sale and Leaseback Transaction to the retirement of the exchange notes or other Debt of Equitable (other than Debt subordinated to the exchange notes), or Debt of any Restricted Subsidiary (other than Debt owed to Equitable or any Restricted Subsidiary), having a stated maturity (i) more than 12 months from the date of such application or (ii) which is extendable at the option of the obligor thereon to a date more than 12 months from the date of such application; provided, that the amount to be so applied will be reduced by (x) the principal amount of exchange notes delivered to the Trustee for retirement and cancellation within 180 days after such sale or transfer, and (y) the principal amount of any such Debt of Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary other than the exchange notes voluntarily retired by Equitable or a Restricted Subsidiary within 180 days after such sale or transfer.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no retirement referred to in the third bullet above may be effected by payment at Maturity.

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets

Equitable may not consolidate with or merge into any other Person or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any Person and Equitable may not permit any Person to consolidate with or merge into Equitable, unless:

Equitable consolidates with or merges into another Person or conveys, transfers or leases its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any Person, and the Person formed by such consolidation or into which Equitable is merged or the Person which acquires by conveyance or transfer, or which leases, the properties and assets of Equitable substantially as an entirety is a corporation, partnership or trust, organized and validly existing under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia and expressly assumes Equitable's obligations on the exchange notes and under the Indenture;

immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, would have happened and be continuing;

if, as a result of any such consolidation or merger or such conveyance, transfer or lease, properties or assets of Equitable would become subject to a lien which would not be permitted by the Indenture, Equitable or such successor Person, as the case may be, takes such steps as are necessary to effectively secure the exchange notes equally and ratably with (or prior to) all indebtedness secured thereby; and

Equitable delivers to the Trustee an officers' certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger, conveyance, transfer or lease and, if a supplemental indenture is required in connection with the transaction, such supplemental indenture complies with the

Indenture and that all conditions precedent in the Indenture provided for relating to such transaction have been complied with

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the phrase "substantially as an entirety" is not defined in the Indenture and has not been interpreted under Pennsylvania law to represent a specific quantitative test and, as a consequence, you may not be able to determine when we have entered into a transaction that conveys, transfers or leases our properties and assets substantially as an entirety. As a result of this uncertainty, it may be difficult for you to:

determine whether our covenant (relating to consolidation, merger, and sale of assets) has been breached;
declare an event of default; and
exercise your acceleration rights.

There also can be a disagreement between us and you over whether a specific asset sale or sales triggers a sale of our assets "substantially as an entirety." In the event that you elect to exercise your rights under the indenture and we contested such election, there could be no assurance as to how a court interpreting Pennsylvania law would interpret the phrase "substantially as an entirety."

General Limitations on Payment of Dividends and Making Distributions

Pennsylvania law prohibits the payment of dividends or the repurchase of our shares if we are insolvent or if we would become insolvent after the dividend or repurchase.

Certain Definitions

Certain terms used in this description are defined in the Indenture as follows:

"Attributable Debt" in respect of a Sale and Leaseback Transaction means, as of any particular time, the present value (discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the terms of the lease involved in such Sale and Leaseback Transaction, as determined in good faith by Equitable) of the obligation of the lessee thereunder for net rental payments (excluding, however, any amounts required to be paid by such lessee, whether or not designated as rent or additional rent, on account of maintenance and repairs, services, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates or similar charges and any amounts required to be paid by such lessee thereunder contingent upon monetary inflation or the amount of sales, maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates or similar charges) during the remaining term of such lease (including any period for which such lease has been extended or may, at the option of the lessor, be extended).

"Consolidated Net Tangible Assets" means the aggregate amount of assets of Equitable and its consolidated Subsidiaries (less applicable reserves) after deducting therefrom (a) all goodwill, trade names, trademarks, patents, unamortized debt discount and expense and other like intangibles and (b) all current liabilities except for current maturities of long-term debt, current maturities of capitalized lease obligations, indebtedness for borrowed money having a maturity of less than 12 months from the date of the most recent audited consolidated balance sheet of Equitable, but which by its terms is renewable or extendable beyond 12 months from such date at the option of the borrower and deferred income taxes which are classified as current liabilities, all as reflected in the audited consolidated balance sheet contained in Equitable's most recent annual report to its shareholders under Rule 14a-3 of the Exchange Act, prior to the time as of which "Consolidated Net Tangible Assets" is being determined.

"Debt" means indebtedness for borrowed money.

"Person" means, except as provided in the Indenture, any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, unincorporated organization or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Principal Property" means any manufacturing plant or production, transportation or marketing facility or other similar facility located within the United States (other than its territories and possessions) and owned by, or leased to, Equitable or any Restricted Subsidiary, the book value of the real property, plant and equipment of which (as shown, without deduction of any depreciation reserves, on the books of the owner or owners) is not less than 1.5% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets as of the date on which such facility is acquired or a leasehold interest therein is acquired.

"Restricted Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary substantially all the property of which is located, or substantially all the business of which is carried on, within the United States (other than its territories and possessions) which shall at the time, directly or indirectly, through one or more Subsidiaries or in combination with one or more other Subsidiaries or Equitable, own or be a lessee of a Principal Property.

"Subsidiary" means, with respect to Equitable, a corporation of which more than 50% of the total voting power of the capital stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of its directors is owned, directly or indirectly, by Equitable or by one or more other Subsidiaries or by Equitable and one or more other Subsidiaries.

Events of Default

An Event of Default with respect to the exchange notes is defined as follows:

default in payment of interest on the exchange notes, which continues for 30 days;

default in payment of principal of or premium, if any, on the exchange notes at maturity;

default in the performance or breach of any covenant of Equitable in the Indenture (other than a default in the performance or breach of a covenant included in the Indenture solely for the benefit of debt securities of Equitable other than the exchange notes offered pursuant to this prospectus), which continues for 60 days after due notice has been given by the Trustee or by the holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the exchange notes;

default under any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness for money borrowed by Equitable (including a default with respect to exchange notes of any series other than that series) or any Subsidiary in an aggregate principal amount of at least \$50,000,000 or under any mortgage, indenture or instrument under which there may be issued or by which there may be secured or evidenced any indebtedness for money borrowed by Equitable (including the Indenture) or any Subsidiary in an aggregate principal amount of at least \$50,000,000 whether such indebtedness now exists or hereafter is created, which default constitutes a failure to pay any portion of the principal of such indebtedness when due and payable after the expiration of any applicable grace period with respect thereto or has resulted in such indebtedness becoming or being declared due and payable prior to the date on which it would otherwise have become due and payable, without such acceleration having been rescinded or annulled, or such indebtedness having been discharged, within a period of 30 days after there shall have been given, by registered or certified mail to Equitable by the Trustee, or to Equitable and the Trustee by the holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the exchange notes, a written notice specifying such default and requiring Equitable to cause such acceleration to be rescinded or annulled or such indebtedness to be discharged and stating that such notice is a Notice of Default under the Indenture; and

certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of Equitable.

The Indenture provides that, if any Event of Default with respect to the exchange notes occurs and is continuing, either the Trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the exchange notes may declare the principal amount of (and all accrued and unpaid interest on) all

exchange notes to be due and payable immediately, but under certain conditions such declaration may be rescinded and annulled and past defaults (except, unless theretofore cured, a default in payment of principal of or premium, if any, or interest, if any, on the exchange notes and certain other specified defaults) may be waived by the holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the exchange notes on behalf of the holders of all the exchange notes.

The Indenture provides that if a default occurs under the Indenture with respect to the exchange notes, the Trustee will give the holders of the exchange notes notice of such default as and to the extent provided by the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the "Trust Indenture Act"); provided, however, that such notice will not be given until at least 30 days after the occurrence of that default if that default is in the performance of a covenant in the Indenture other than for the payment of the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the exchange notes or the deposit of any sinking fund payment with respect to the exchange notes. For purposes of the provision described in this paragraph, the term default with respect to any exchange notes means any event which is, or after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an "Event of Default" specified in the Indenture with respect to the exchange notes.

The Indenture contains a provision entitling the Trustee to be indemnified by holders of the exchange notes before proceeding to exercise any right or power vested in it under the Indenture at the request or direction of the holders of the exchange notes. There is no specific indemnification language that the Trustee would require before proceeding to exercise any right, or power vested in it, under the Indenture at the request or direction of the holders of the exchange notes. The Trustee has advised that the specific indemnification required would vary from circumstance to circumstance. The terms of the indemnification required by the Trustee will depend on the nature of the right or power requested or directed to be exercised by the holders and the circumstances that exist at that time. Equitable anticipates that in any event, the Trustee would expect to be fully protected for all actions.

The Trustee is required, during a default, to act with the standard of care provided in the Trust Indenture Act. The Indenture provides that the holders of a majority in principal amount of the exchange notes may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee with respect to the exchange notes; provided, that the Trustee may decline to act if:

such direction is contrary to law or the Indenture; or

the Trustee in good faith determines that the action so directed would involve the Trustee in personal liability for which it has not been adequately indemnified or would be unduly prejudicial to holders not joining in such direction. The Indenture includes a covenant that Equitable will annually file a certificate with the Trustee concerning its compliance with the Indenture.

Modification and Waiver

Modifications and amendments may be made by Equitable and the Trustee to the Indenture, without the consent of any holder of the exchange notes, to add covenants and Events of Default and to make provisions with respect to other matters and issues arising under the Indenture, provided that any such provision does not adversely affect the rights of the holders of the exchange notes in any material respect.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting Equitable and the Trustee, with the consent of the holders of not less than $66^2/3\%$ in principal amount of the exchange notes to execute supplemental indentures adding any provisions to or changing or eliminating any of the provisions of the Indenture

or modifying the rights of the holders of the exchange notes, except that no such supplemental indenture may, without the consent of the holder of each note affected thereby:

change the Stated Maturity of the principal of, or any installment of principal of or interest on, the exchange notes, or reduce the principal amount thereof, the premium, if any, thereon or the rate of interest, of the exchange notes;

reduce the percentage in principal amount of the exchange notes, the consent of whose holders is required for any supplemental indenture or for waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the Indenture or certain defaults thereunder; or

reduce the percentage of holders of the exchange notes required to consent to any waiver of defaults, covenants or supplemental indentures.

The Indenture also permits Equitable to omit compliance with the "Restriction on Liens" and the "Restriction on Sale and Leaseback Transactions" covenants contained in the Indenture and described in this prospectus with respect to the exchange notes upon waiver by the holders of not less than 66²/₃% in principal amount of the exchange notes.

Discharge or Defeasance

The Indenture will cease to be of further effect (except as to any surviving rights for the registration of the transfer or exchange of exchange notes expressly provided for in the Indenture) if:

all exchange notes (other than destroyed, lost or stolen exchange notes which have been replaced or paid and exchange notes, the payment for which has been held in trust and thereafter repaid to Equitable or discharged from such trust) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; or

all exchange notes not previously delivered to the Trustee for cancellation have become due and payable or are by their terms to become due and payable at their stated maturity within one year or are to be called for redemption within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee and Equitable has deposited with the Trustee, as trust funds, an amount sufficient to pay and discharge the entire indebtedness on the exchange notes for principal and any premium and interest to the date of such deposit or to maturity or redemption, as the case may be. Such trust may only be established if (a) Equitable has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable by Equitable under the Indenture and (b) Equitable has delivered to the Trustee an officers' certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent provided for in the Indenture relating to the satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture have been complied with.

The Indenture provides that the terms of the exchange notes may provide Equitable with the option to discharge its indebtedness represented by such exchange notes or to cease to be obligated to comply with certain covenants under the Indenture. Equitable, in order to exercise such option, will be required to deposit with the Trustee money and/or U.S. Government Obligations which, through the payment of interest and principal in respect thereof in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressed in a written certification delivered to the Trustee, to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on, and any mandatory sinking fund payments in respect of, the exchange notes at the stated maturity of such payments in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and such exchange notes. Such trust may only be established if:

in the case the exchange notes are then listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Equitable has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel, stating that Equitable's exercise of this defeasance option will not cause the exchange notes to be delisted;

no Event of Default or event (including such deposit in trust) that with notice or lapse of time or both would become an Event of Default with respect to the exchange notes has occurred and is continuing on the date of such deposit;

Equitable has delivered to the Trustee (1) an opinion of counsel, stating that the holders of the exchange notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of Equitable's exercise of this defeasance option and will be subject to Federal income tax on the same amounts and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if Equitable had not exercised this option and (2) in the case of the exchange notes being discharged, either a private letter ruling to that effect received from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") or a revenue ruling pertaining to a comparable form of transaction to that effect published by the IRS or evidence of a change in applicable Federal income tax law to that effect occurring after the date of the Indenture; and

if Equitable is to be discharged with respect to the exchange notes, no Event of Default or event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become an Event of Default with respect to the exchange notes has occurred and is continuing at any time during the period ending on the 123rd day after the date of deposit by Equitable.

In the event Equitable exercises this option and the exchange notes are declared due and payable because of the occurrence of any Event of Default, the amount of money and U.S. Government Obligations, as the case may be, on deposit with the Trustee will be sufficient to pay the amounts due on the exchange notes at the time of their maturity, but may not be sufficient to pay the amounts due on the exchange notes at the time of the acceleration resulting from such Event of Default. However, Equitable will remain liable for such payments.

Trustee

The Trustee may resign or be removed with respect to the exchange notes and a successor trustee may be appointed to act with respect to such exchange notes. In the event that two or more persons are acting as trustee with respect to different series of notes, each such trustee will be a trustee of a trust under the Indenture separate and apart from the trust administered by any other such trustee, and any action described herein to be taken by the "Trustee" under the Indenture may then be taken by each such trustee with respect to, and only with respect to, the one or more series of notes for which it is trustee.

Book-Entry, Delivery and Form

The exchange notes will be issued in registered, global form in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof, subject to the requirement that the exchange notes be issued in minimum denominations of \$2,000. The exchange notes will be represented by one or more exchange notes in registered, global form without interest coupons (collectively, the "Global Notes"). The Global Notes will be deposited upon issuance with the Trustee as custodian for DTC, in New York, New York, and registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, in each case to an account of a direct or indirect participant in DTC as described below.

Except as set forth below, the Global Notes may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Beneficial interests in the Global Notes may not be exchanged for notes in certificated form except in the limited circumstances described below. See "Exchange of Global Notes for Certificated Notes." Except in the limited circumstances described below, owners of beneficial interests in the Global Notes will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of notes in certificated form.

In addition, transfers of beneficial interests in the Global Notes will be subject to the applicable rules and procedures of DTC and its direct or indirect participants (including, if applicable, those of Euroclear and Clearstream), which may change from time to time.

Depository Procedures

The following description of the operations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream are provided solely as a matter of convenience. These operations and procedures are solely within the control of the respective settlement systems and are subject to changes by them. Equitable takes no responsibility for these operations and procedures and urges investors to contact the system or their participants directly to discuss these matters.

DTC has advised Equitable that DTC is a limited-purpose trust company created to hold securities for its participating organizations (collectively, the "Participants") and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of transactions in those securities between Participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of its Participants. The Participants include securities brokers and dealers (including the initial purchasers), banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. Access to DTC's system is also available to other entities such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Participant, either directly or indirectly (collectively, the "Indirect Participants"). Persons who are not Participants may beneficially own securities held by or on behalf of DTC only through the Participants or the Indirect Participants. The ownership interests in, and transfers of ownership interests in, each security held by or on behalf of DTC are recorded on the records of the Participants and Indirect Participants.

DTC has also advised Equitable that, pursuant to procedures established by it:

upon deposit of the Global Notes, DTC will credit the accounts of Participants designated by the initial purchasers with portions of the principal amount of the Global Notes; and

ownership of these interests in the Global Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership of these interests will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC (with respect to the Participants) or by the Participants and the Indirect Participants (with respect to other owners of beneficial interests in the Global Notes).

Investors in the Global Notes who are Participants in DTC's system may hold their interests therein directly through DTC. Investors in the Global Notes who are not Participants may hold their interests therein indirectly through organizations (including Euroclear and Clearstream) which are Participants in such system. Euroclear and Clearstream will hold interests in the Global Notes on behalf of their participants through customers' securities accounts in their respective names on the books of their respective depositories, which are Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of Euroclear, and Citibank, N.A., as operator of Clearstream. All interests in a Global Note, including those held through Euroclear or Clearstream, may be subject to the procedures and requirements of DTC. Those interests held through Euroclear or Clearstream may also be subject to the procedures and requirements of such systems. The laws of some states require that certain Persons take physical delivery in definitive form of securities that they own. Consequently, the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a Global Note to such Persons will be limited to that extent. Because DTC can act only on behalf of Participants, which in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants, the ability of a Person having beneficial interests in a Global Note to pledge such interests to Persons that do not participate in the DTC system, or otherwise take actions in respect of such interests, may be affected by the lack of a physical certificate evidencing such interests.

Except as described below, owners of interest in the Global Notes will not have exchange notes registered in their names, will not receive physical delivery of exchange notes in certificated form and will not be considered the registered owners or "holders" thereof under the Indenture for any purpose.

Payments in respect of the principal of, and interest and premium on a Global Note registered in the name of DTC or its nominee will be payable to DTC in its capacity as the registered holder under the Indenture. Under the terms of the Indenture, Equitable and the Trustee will treat the Persons in whose names the exchange notes, including the Global Notes, are registered as the owners of the exchange notes for the purpose of receiving payments and for all other purposes. Consequently, neither Equitable, the Trustee nor any agent of Equitable or the Trustee has or will have any responsibility or liability for:

any aspect of DTC's records or any Participant's or Indirect Participant's records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any of DTC's records or any Participant's or Indirect Participant's records relating to beneficial ownership interests in the Global Notes; or

any other matter relating to the actions and practices of DTC or any of its Participants or Indirect Participants.

DTC has advised Equitable that its current practice, upon receipt of any payment in respect of securities such as the exchange notes (including principal and interest), is to credit the accounts of the relevant Participants with the payment on the payment date unless DTC has reason to believe it will not receive payment on such payment date. Each relevant Participant is credited with an amount proportionate to its beneficial ownership interest in the principal amount of the relevant security as shown on the records of DTC. Payments by the Participants and the Indirect Participants to the beneficial owners of exchange notes will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices and will be the responsibility of the Participants or the Indirect Participants and will not be the responsibility of DTC, the Trustee or Equitable. Neither Equitable nor the Trustee will be liable for any delay by DTC or any of its Participants in identifying the beneficial owners of the exchange notes, and Equitable and the Trustee may conclusively rely on and will be protected in relying on instructions from DTC or its nominee for all purposes.

Subject to the transfer restrictions set forth under "Notice to Investors," transfers between Participants in DTC will be effected in accordance with DTC's procedures and will be settled in same-day funds, and transfers between participants in Euroclear and Clearstream will be effected in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.

Subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions applicable to the exchange notes described herein, cross-market transfers between the Participants in DTC, on the one hand, and Euroclear or Clearstream participants, on the other hand, will be effected through DTC in accordance with DTC's rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by its respective depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with the rules and procedures and within the established deadlines (Brussels time) of such system. Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its respective depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving interests in the relevant Global Note in DTC and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Euroclear Participants and Clearstream Participants may not deliver instructions directly to the depositaries for Euroclear or Clearstream.

DTC has advised Equitable that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of exchange notes only at the direction of one or more Participants to whose account DTC has credited the interests in the Global Notes and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate principal amount

of the exchange notes as to which such Participant or Participants has or have given such direction. However, if there is an Event of Default under the exchange notes, DTC reserves the right to exchange the Global Notes for legended exchange notes in certificated form, and to distribute such exchange notes to its Participants.

Although DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream have agreed to the foregoing procedures to facilitate transfers of interests in the Rule 144A Global Notes and the Regulation S Global Notes among participants in DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, they are under no obligation to perform or to continue to perform such procedures and may discontinue such procedures at any time. Neither Equitable nor the Trustee nor any of their respective agents will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream or their respective Participants or indirect Participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

Exchange of Global Notes for Certificated Exchange Notes

A Global Note is exchangeable for definitive exchange notes in registered certificated form ("Certificated Notes") if:

DTC (a) notifies Equitable that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for the Global Notes or (b) has ceased to be a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and, in either case, Equitable fails to appoint a successor depositary;

in the case of a Global Note held for an account of Euroclear or Clearstream, either as the case may be, (a) is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of statutory or other holidays), or (b) announces an intention permanently to cease business or does in fact do so;

Equitable, at its option, notifies the Trustee in writing that it elects to cause the issuance of Certificated Exchange Notes; or

there has occurred and is continuing an Event of Default with respect to the exchange notes.

In addition, beneficial interests in a Global Note may be exchanged for Certificated Exchange Notes upon prior written notice given to the Trustee by or on behalf of DTC in accordance with the Indenture. In all cases, Certificated Exchange Notes delivered in exchange for any Global Note or beneficial interests in Global Notes will be registered in the names, and issued in any approved denominations, requested by or on behalf of the depositary (in accordance with its customary procedures) and will bear the applicable restrictive legend referred to in "Notice to Investors," unless that legend is not required by applicable law.

Exchange of Certificated Exchange Notes for Global Notes

Certificated Exchange Notes may not be exchanged for beneficial interests in any Global Note unless the transferor first delivers to the Trustee a written certificate (in the form provided in the Indenture) to the effect that such transfer will comply with the appropriate transfer restrictions applicable to such notes. See "Notice to Investors."

Same Day Settlement and Payment

Equitable will make payments in respect of the exchange notes represented by the Global Notes (including principal, premium, if any, interest and additional interest, if any) by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts specified by the Global Note holder. Equitable will make all payments of principal, interest and premium, with respect to Certificated Exchange Notes by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts specified by the holders of the Certificated Exchange Notes or, if no such account is specified, by mailing a check to each such Holder's registered

address. The exchange notes represented by the Global Notes are expected to trade in DTC's Same-Day Funds Settlement System, and any permitted secondary market trading activity in such exchange notes will, therefore, be required by DTC to be settled in immediately available funds. Equitable expects that secondary trading in any Certificated Exchange Notes will also be settled in immediately available funds.

Because of time zone differences, the securities account of a Euroclear or Clearstream participant purchasing an interest in a Global Note from a Participant in DTC will be credited, and any such crediting will be reported to the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream participant, during the securities settlement processing day (which must be a business day for Euroclear and Clearstream) immediately following the settlement date of DTC. DTC has advised Equitable that cash received in Euroclear or Clearstream as a result of sales of interests in a Global Note by or through a Euroclear or Clearstream participant to a Participant in DTC will be received with value on the settlement date of DTC but will be available in the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream cash account only as of the business day for Euroclear or Clearstream following DTC's settlement date.

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of the original notes for exchange notes and the ownership and disposition of the exchange notes, but does not purport to be a complete analysis of all the potential tax considerations. This summary is limited to the tax consequences of those persons who are original beneficial owners of the original notes, who purchased the original notes at their original issue price and who hold such original notes and exchange notes as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). This summary does not purport to deal with all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that might be relevant to particular holders in light of their particular investment circumstances or status, nor does it address specific tax consequences that may be relevant to particular persons subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws (including, for example, financial institutions, broker-dealers, insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, persons that have a functional currency other than the U.S. Dollar, dealers in securities or currencies, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, U.S. expatriates, persons who have elected to mark securities to market, or those who hold notes as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion transaction, or other integrated investment). In addition, this summary does not address U.S. federal alternative minimum tax consequences under the tax laws of a state, local or foreign jurisdiction. This summary is based upon the Code, the Treasury Department regulations promulgated or proposed thereunder and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, all as of the date hereof and all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis. We have not sought any ruling from the IRS with respect to the statements made and the conclusions reached in this summary, and we cannot assure you that the IRS will agree

This summary is for general information only. Holders of the original notes and exchange notes are urged to consult their tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal income and other tax consequences to them of exchanging such holder's original notes for exchange notes and owning and disposing of the exchange notes, as well as the application of state, local and foreign income and other tax laws.

EACH HOLDER OF THE NOTES IS URGED TO CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR ABOUT THE UNITED STATES FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAX CONSEQUENCES OF EXCHANGING THE ORIGINAL NOTES FOR EXCHANGE NOTES AND HOLDING AND DISPOSING OF THE NOTES AND THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE NOTES, UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTIONS WHERE THE HOLDER MAY BE SUBJECT TO TAXATION.

If a partnership exchanges or holds the notes, the tax treatment of a partner generally will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. A partner of a partnership that exchanges or holds the notes should consult its own tax advisors.

TO COMPLY WITH INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE CIRCULAR 230, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISCUSSION OF FEDERAL TAX ISSUES IN THIS SUMMARY IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED BY YOU, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON YOU UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation of U.S. Holders

The following summary is limited to the U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to a U.S. Holder. A "U.S. Holder" is a holder that for U.S. federal income tax purposes is:

an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof;

an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of the source; or

a trust, if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all its substantial decisions or if a valid election to be treated as a U.S. person is in effect with respect to such trust.

A "Non-U.S. Holder" is a holder that is neither a U.S. Holder nor a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

A partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes is not subject to income tax on income derived from holding the original notes or exchange notes. A partner of a partnership may be subject to tax on such income under rules similar to the rules for U.S. Holders or Non-U.S. Holders depending on whether (i) the partner is a U.S. or a non-U.S. person, and (ii) the partnership is or is not engaged in a U.S. trade or business to which income or gain from the original notes or exchange notes is effectively connected. If you are a partner of a partnership holding the original notes or exchange notes, you should consult your tax advisor about the U.S. tax consequences of exchanging the original notes for exchange notes and holding and disposing of the exchange notes.

Exchange of Original Notes for Exchange Notes

The exchange of original notes for exchange notes will not constitute a taxable event for U.S. Holders. Consequently, a U.S. Holder will not recognize gain or loss upon receipt of an exchange note in exchange for an original note, the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the exchange note received will be the same as its adjusted tax basis in the corresponding original note immediately before the exchange and the U.S. Holder's holding period in the exchange note will include its holding period in the original note.

Tax Consequences of Holding and Disposing of the Exchange Notes

Stated Interest on the Exchange Notes

Stated interest on an exchange note will be includible in gross income as ordinary interest income in accordance with a U.S. Holder's usual method of accounting for tax purposes. Thus, accrual method U.S. Holders will report interest on the exchange notes as it accrues, and cash method U.S. Holders will report interest when it is received or unconditionally made available for receipt.

Original Issue Discount

Subject to a de minimus rule, the exchange notes will be treated as issued with original issue discount, or "OID," to the extent their "stated redemption price at maturity" exceeds their "issue price." The stated redemption price at maturity of the exchange notes will equal their stated principal amount. The issue price of the exchange notes will be equal to the issue price of the original notes.

The issue price of a debt instrument that is traded on an established market or that is issued for another debt instrument so traded would be the fair market value of such debt instrument or such other debt instrument, as the case may be, on the issue date as determined by such trading. The issue price of a debt instrument that is neither so traded nor issued for another debt instrument so traded generally would be its stated principal amount. We believe, and intend to take the tax reporting position, that neither the original notes or exchange notes should be treated as traded on an established market and the original issue price of the exchange notes will be the stated principal amount of the original notes and there will be no OID on the exchange notes.

We may be obligated to pay amounts in excess of stated interest or principal on the exchange notes in certain circumstances (see "Description of Exchange Notes" Optional Redemption"). Under

Treasury regulations, the possibility that any such payments in excess of stated interest or principal will be made will not affect the yield or maturity date of the notes (and therefore, will not affect the amount of interest income a U.S. Holder recognizes) if, based on all the facts and circumstances as of the issue date, the likelihood of such payments is remote or the amount of the payment is incidental. We believe that the likelihood that we will be obligated to pay any such amounts is either remote or the amount payable is incidental. Therefore, we do not intend to treat the potential payment of these amounts as part of the yield to maturity of an exchange note. Our determinations that these contingencies are remote or incidental is binding on a U.S. Holder unless such holder discloses its contrary position in the manner required by applicable Treasury regulations. Our determination is not, however, binding on the IRS, and if the IRS were to challenge this determination, a U.S. Holder might be required to accrue income on its exchange notes in excess of stated interest, and to treat as ordinary income rather than capital gain any income realized on the taxable disposition of an exchange note before the resolution of the contingencies. In the event a contingency was to occur, it would affect the amount and timing of the income recognized by the U.S. Holder. If any such amounts are in fact paid, U.S. Holders will be required to recognize such amounts as income.

Disposition of Exchange Notes

Upon the sale, exchange, redemption or other disposition of an exchange note, a U.S. Holder generally will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between:

the sum of cash plus the fair market value of all other property received on such disposition (except to the extent such cash or property is attributable to accrued but unpaid interest not previously included in income, which is treated as interest as described above); and

such U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the exchange note.

A U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in an exchange note is described above under " Exchange of Original Notes for Exchange Notes."

Gain or loss recognized on the disposition of an exchange note generally will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if, at the time of such disposition, the U.S. Holder's holding period for the exchange note combined with any prior holding period for the original note is more than 12 months. In general, the maximum federal long-term capital gain rate is currently 15% for noncorporate U.S. Holders and 35% for corporate U.S. Holders. The deductibility of capital losses by U.S. Holders is subject to various limitations.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders

Payments of Interest

Subject to the discussion of backup withholding below, payments of principal and interest (including OID, if any) on the exchange notes by us or any of our agents to a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, provided that:

interest paid on the exchange notes is not effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States;

the Non-U.S. Holder does not, directly or indirectly, actually or constructively own 10 percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote within the meaning of Section 871(h)(3) of the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder;

the Non-U.S. Holder is not a controlled foreign corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes that is related to us through stock ownership;

the Non-U.S. Holder is not a bank where receipt of interest on the exchange notes is described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code: and

either (A) the beneficial owner of the exchange notes certifies to us or our agent on IRS Form W-8BEN (or a suitable substitute form or successor form), under penalties of perjury, that it is not a "U.S. person" (as defined in the Code) and provides its name and address, or (B) a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution that holds customers' securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business (a "financial institution") and holds the exchange notes on behalf of the beneficial owner certifies to us or our agent, under penalties of perjury, that such a statement has been received from the beneficial owner by it or by a financial institution between it and the beneficial owner and furnishes us with a copy thereof (the "Portfolio Interest Exemption").

If a Non-U.S. Holder cannot satisfy the requirements of the Portfolio Interest Exemption, payments of interest (including OID, if any) made to such Non-U.S. Holder will be subject to a 30% withholding tax unless the beneficial owner of the exchange note provides us or our agent, as the case may be, with a properly executed

IRS Form W-8BEN (or successor form) claiming an exemption from withholding under the benefit of a tax treaty (a "Treaty Exemption"); or

IRS Form W-8ECI (or successor form) stating that interest paid on the exchange note is not subject to withholding tax because it is effectively connected with the beneficial owner's conduct of a trade or business in the United States.

The certification requirement described above also may require a Non-U.S. Holder that provides an IRS form, or that claims the benefit of an income tax treaty, to provide its U.S. taxpayer identification number.

The applicable regulations generally also require, in the case of an exchange note held by a foreign partnership, that:

the certification described above be provided by the partnership; and

the partnership provide certain information, and

in the case of an exchange note held by a foreign trust, that:

the certification described above be provided by the beneficial owners depending upon whether the trust is a "foreign complex trust," "foreign simple trust" or "foreign grantor trust" as defined in the Treasury regulations; and

the trust provides certain information.

Further, a look-through rule will apply in the case of tiered partnerships, foreign simple trusts and foreign grantor trusts. We suggest that you consult your tax advisor about the specific methods for satisfying these requirements. A claim for exemption will not be valid if the person receiving the applicable form has actual knowledge or reason to know that the statements on the form are false.

If interest (including OID, if any) on an exchange note is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the beneficial owner (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a United States permanent establishment), the Non-U.S. Holder, although exempt from the withholding tax described above, will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such interest on a net income basis in the same manner as if it were a U.S. Holder. In addition, if such Non-U.S. Holder is a foreign corporation, it may be subject to a branch profits tax equal to 30% of its effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable year, subject to adjustments. For this purpose, interest on an exchange note will be included in the foreign corporation's earnings and profits.

Disposition of Exchange Notes

No withholding of U.S. federal income tax will be required with respect to any gain or income realized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale, exchange or disposition of an exchange note.

A Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gain realized on the sale, exchange, or other disposition of an exchange note unless:

the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 or more days in the taxable year of the disposition and certain other conditions are met;

the Non-U.S. Holder is subject to tax pursuant to the provisions of U.S. tax law applicable to certain U.S. expatriates; or

such gain or income is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a United States permanent establishment).

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

U.S. Holders

For each calendar year in which the exchange notes are outstanding, we are required to provide the IRS with certain information, including the beneficial owner's name, address and taxpayer identification number, the aggregate amount of interest (including OID, if any) paid to that beneficial owner during the calendar year and the amount of tax withheld, if any. This obligation, however, does not apply with respect to payments to certain U.S. Holders, including corporations and tax-exempt organizations, provided that they establish entitlement to an exemption.

In the event that a U.S. Holder subject to the reporting requirements described above fails to supply its correct taxpayer identification number in the manner required by applicable law or underreports its tax liability, we, our agents or paying agents or a broker may be required to "backup" withhold a tax on each payment of interest (including OID, if any) and principal (and premium, if any) on the exchange notes. This backup withholding is not an additional tax and may be credited against the U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, and entitle such U.S. Holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

Non-U.S. Holders

We must report annually to the IRS and to each Non-U.S. Holder any interest (including OID, if any) paid to the Non-U.S. Holder and the amount of tax, if any, withheld with respect to those interest payments. Copies of these information returns may also be made available under the provisions of a specific treaty or other agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which the Non-U.S. Holder resides. Under current Treasury regulations, United States backup withholding tax will not apply to payments on an exchange note to a Non-U.S. Holder if the non-U.S. person certification described in "U.S. Federal Income Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders Payments of Interest" is duly provided by such Non-U.S. Holder or the Non-U.S. Holder otherwise establishes an exemption, provided that the payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that the Non-U.S. Holder is a U.S. person or that the conditions of any claimed exemption are not satisfied. However, information reporting on IRS Form 1042-S may still apply with respect to interest (including OID, if any) payments.

Generally, information reporting requirements and backup withholding tax will not apply to any payment of the proceeds of the sale of an exchange note effected outside the United States by a foreign office of a "broker" (as defined in applicable Treasury regulations), unless the broker is:

a U.S. person;

a foreign person that derives 50% or more of it gross income for certain periods from activities that are effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States;

a controlled foreign corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes; or

a foreign partnership more than 50% of the capital or profits of which is owned by one or more U.S. persons or which engages in a U.S. trade or business.

Payment of the proceeds of any such sale effected outside the United States by a foreign office of any broker that is described in the four bullet points of the preceding sentence may be subject to information reporting requirements (but not backup withholding), unless such broker has documentary evidence in its records that the beneficial owner is a Non-U.S. Holder and certain other conditions are met, or the beneficial owner otherwise establishes an exemption. Payment of the proceeds of any such sale to or through the U.S. office of a broker is subject to information reporting and backup withholding requirements, unless the beneficial owner of the note provides the non-U.S. person certification described in "U.S. Federal Income Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders Payments of Interest" or otherwise establishes an exemption, provided that the payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that the holder is a U.S. person or that the conditions of any claimed exemption are not satisfied.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax and any amounts withheld pursuant to the backup withholding rules may be credited against a Non-U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, and entitle such Non-U.S. Holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Each broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for its own account in the exchange offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of exchange notes. Broker-dealers may use this prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from to time, in connection with resales of exchange notes received in exchange for original notes if the broker-dealer acquired the original notes as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that for a period of 180 days after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer who requests it in the letter of transmittal for use in connection with any such resale. In addition, until , 200 , all dealers effecting transactions in the exchange notes may be required to deliver a prospectus.

We will not receive any proceeds from any sale of exchange notes by broker-dealers or other persons. Broker-dealers may from time to time sell exchange notes received for their own accounts in the exchange offer in one or more transactions:

in the over-the-counter market;
in negotiated transactions;
through the writing of options on the exchange notes or a combination of such methods of resale;
at market prices prevailing at the time of resale;
at prices related to such prevailing market prices; or
at negotiated prices.

Broker-dealers may resell exchange notes directly to purchasers or to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in the form of commissions or concessions from any broker-dealer and/or the purchasers of the exchange notes. Any broker-dealer that resells exchange notes that were received by it for its own account pursuant to the exchange offer and any broker or dealer that participates in a distribution of the exchange notes may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act, and any profit on any resale of exchange notes and any commissions or concessions received by any such persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act. The letter of transmittal states that by acknowledging that it will deliver and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to pay all expenses incident to our performance of, or compliance with, the registration rights agreement and will indemnify the holders of the notes (including any broker-dealers) against certain liabilities under the Securities Act.

By its acceptance of the exchange offer, any broker-dealer that receives exchange notes pursuant to the exchange offer agrees to notify us in writing before using the prospectus in connection with the sale or transfer of exchange notes. The broker-dealer further acknowledges and agrees that, upon receipt of notice from us of the happening of any event which makes any statement in the prospectus untrue in any material respect or which requires the making of any changes in the prospectus to make the statements in the prospectus not misleading or which may impose upon us disclosure obligations that my have a material adverse effect on us, which notice we agree to deliver promptly to the broker-dealer, the broker-dealer will suspend use of the prospectus until we have notified the broker-dealer that delivery of the prospectus may resume and have furnished to the broker-dealer copies of any amendment or supplement to the prospectus. We have agreed in the registration rights agreement that for a period of 180 days after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer who requests it in writing for use in connection with any such resale.

LEGAL MATTERS

Whether the exchange notes will constitute our valid and binding obligations in connection with the exchange offer is being passed upon for us by Reed Smith LLP, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Equitable Resources, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004 (including the schedule appearing therein) and Equitable Resources, Inc.'s management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, incorporated by reference in this prospectus and registration statement, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their reports thereon and incorporated by reference herein. Such consolidated financial statements and management's assessment are incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You can inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information at the public reference facilities of the SEC, at 100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on its public reference room. The SEC also maintains a web site that contains reports, proxy statements and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. You can inspect reports and other information we file at the office of The New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

We will provide you, without charge, upon written or oral request, a copy of the notes, the indenture governing the notes, the related registration rights agreement, and other material agreements that we summarize in this prospectus. You may request copies of these documents by contacting us at:

Equitable Resources, Inc.
225 North Shore Drive
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15212
Attention: Johanna G. O'Loughlin, Esq.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Telephone: 412-553-5700

EQUITABLE RESOURCES

If you are a broker-dealer that receives exchange notes for your own account as a result of market-making or other trading activities, you must acknowledge that you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the exchange notes. The letter of transmittal accompanying this prospectus states that by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, you will not be deemed to admit that you are an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act. You may use this prospectus, as we may amend or supplement it in the future, for your resales of exchange notes if you acquired the exchange notes as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We will make this prospectus available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale for a period of 180 days after the date of expiration of this exchange offer. See "Plan of Distribution."

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Sections 1741 and 1742 of the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law of 1988, as amended (the "PBCL"), provide that a business corporation shall have the power to indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director or officer of another corporation or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such proceeding, if such person acted in good faith in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct unlawful. In the case of an action by or in the right of the corporation, such indemnification excludes judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement with respect to such action, and no indemnification shall be made for expenses in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person has been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless, and only to the extent that, a court determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for the expenses that the court deems proper.

PBCL Section 1744 provides that, unless ordered by a court, any indemnification referred to above shall be made by the corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct. Such determination shall be made:

- (1) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the proceeding;
- (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or if obtainable and a majority vote of a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion; or
 - (3) by the shareholders.

Notwithstanding the above, PBCL Section 1743 provides that to the extent that a director or officer of a business corporation is successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of a proceeding referred to above, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith.

PBCL Section 1745 provides that expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by an officer or director of a business corporation in defending any such proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking to repay the amount advanced if it is ultimately determined that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation.

PBCL Section 1746 provides that the indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, the foregoing provisions is not exclusive of any other rights to which a person seeking indemnification may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, and that indemnification may be granted under any bylaw, agreement, vote of shareholders or directors or otherwise for any action taken or any failure to take any action whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the person under any other provision of law and whether or not the indemnified liability arises or arose from any action by

or in the right of the corporation, provided, however, that no indemnification may be made in any case where the act or failure to act giving rise to the claim for indemnification is determined by a court to have constituted willful misconduct or recklessness.

Article IV of the by-laws of the Company provides that the directors or officers of the Company shall be indemnified as of right to the fullest extent now or hereafter not prohibited by law in connection with any actual or threatened action, suit or proceeding, civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other (whether brought by or in the right of the Company or otherwise) arising out of their service to the Company or to another enterprise at the request of the Company.

PBCL Section 1747 permits a Pennsylvania business corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was as director or officer of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director or officer of another corporation or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the person against such liability under the provisions described above.

Article IV of the by-laws of the Company provides that the Company may purchase and maintain insurance to protect itself and any director or officer entitled to indemnification under Article IV against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in respect of the service of such person to the Company whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability by law or under the provisions of Article IV.

The Company maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance covering its directors and officers with respect to liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which they may incur in connection with their serving as such. Under this insurance, the Company may receive reimbursement for amounts as to which the directors and officers are indemnified by the Company under the foregoing by-law indemnification provisions. Such insurance also provides certain additional coverage for the directors and officers against certain liabilities even though such liabilities may not be covered by the foregoing by-law indemnification provision.

As permitted by PBCL Section 1713, the Articles and by-laws of the Company provide that no director shall be personally liable, as such, for monetary damages for any action taken, or failure to take any action, unless the director has breached or failed to perform the duties of his office under Subchapter B "Fiduciary Duty" of Chapter 17 of Subpart B "Business Corporations" of the Pennsylvania Associations Code or unless such director's breach of duty or failure to perform constituted self-dealing, willful misconduct or recklessness. The PBCL states that this exculpation from liability does not apply to the responsibility or liability of a director pursuant to any criminal statute or the liability of a director for the payment of taxes pursuant to Federal, state or local law. It is uncertain whether this provision will control with respect to liabilities imposed upon directors by Federal law, including Federal securities laws. PBCL Section 1715(d) creates a presumption, subject to exceptions, that a director acted in the best interests of the corporation. PBCL Section 1712, in defining the standard of care a director owes to the corporation, provides that a director stands in a fiduciary relation to the corporation and must perform his duties as a director or as a member of any committee of the Board in good faith, in a manner he reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, skill, and diligence, as a person of ordinary prudence would use under similar circumstances.

The Company has Indemnification Agreements with all executive officers and directors (collectively, the "Indemnitees"). These agreements provide that the Indemnitees will be protected as promised in the Bylaws of the Company (regardless of, among other things, any amendment to or revocation of the Bylaws or any change in the composition of the Company's Board of Directors or an acquisition transaction relating to the Company), advanced expenses to the fullest extent of the law and as set forth in the Indemnification Agreements, and, to the extent insurance is maintained, for the

continued coverage of the Indemnitees under the Company's Director & Officer insurance policies. The Indemnification Agreements, among other things and subject to certain limitations, indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees against any and all reasonable expenses and any all liability and loss incurred or paid by the Indemnitees in connection with any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative and whether or not by or in the right of Equitable or otherwise, in which the Indemnitees are, were or at any time become parties, or are threatened to be made parties or are involved by reason of the fact that the Indemnitees are or were directors or officers of Equitable or were serving at the request of Equitable.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) A list of exhibits filed with this registration statement on Form S-4 is set forth on the Index to Exhibits and is incorporated in this Item 21 by reference.

All other schedules are not applicable and have therefore been omitted.

Item 22. Undertakings

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
 - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
 - (i) To include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent to more than 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
 - (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

Provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i) and (a)(1)(ii) do not apply if the registration statement is on Form S-3, Form S-8 or Form F-3, and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to section 13 or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement;

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof; and
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Item 4, 10(b), 11, or 13 of this form, within

one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents field subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement through the date of responding to this request.

- (c) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the registration statement when it became effective.
- (d) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
- (e) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to deliver or cause to be delivered with the prospectus, to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest annual report, to security holders that is incorporated by reference in the prospectus and furnished pursuant to and meeting the requirements of Rule 14a-3 or Rule 14c-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and where interim financial information required to be presented by Article 3 of Regulation S-X is not set forth in the prospectus, to deliver, or cause to be delivered to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest quarterly report that is specifically incorporated by reference in the prospectus to provide such interim financial information.
- (f) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Pittsburgh, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on October 28, 2005.

EQUITABLE RESOURCES, INC.

By: /s/ DAVID L. PORGES

Name: David L. Porges

Title: Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President,

Finance and Administration

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints David L. Porges, Philip P. Conti and Johanna G. O'Loughlin, his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as such person might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or its or his or her substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements and the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date	
/s/ MURRY S. GERBER	Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer		
Murry S. Gerber	(Principal Executive Officer)	October 28, 2005	
/s/ DAVID L. PORGES David L. Porges	Vice Chairman and Executive Vice President, Finance and Administration (Principal Financial Officer)	October 28, 2005	
/s/ PHILIP P. CONTI	Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer	October 28, 2005	
Philip P. Conti	vice rresident, Chief Phiancial Officer and Treasurer	October 28, 2003	
/s/ JOHN A. BERGONZI John A. Bergonzi	Vice President and Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)	October 28, 2005	
/s/ VICKY A. BAILEY	Director	October 28, 2005	
Vicky A. Bailey		······································	

/s/ PHYLLIS A. DOMM	Director	October 28, 2005
Phyllis A. Domm	Director	October 28, 2003
/s/ BARBARA S. JEREMIAH	Director	Ostalou 20, 2005
Barbara S. Jeremiah	Director	October 28, 2005
/s/ THOMAS A. MCCONOMY	D' .	0 4 1 20 2005
Thomas A. McConomy	Director	October 28, 2005
/s/ GEORGE L. MILES, JR.	Director	October 28, 2005
George L. Miles, Jr.	Director	Octobel 28, 2003
/s/ JAMES E. ROHR	Director	October 28, 2005
James E. Rohr	Director	Octobel 28, 2003
/s/ DAVID S. SHAPIRA	Director	October 28, 2005
David S. Shapira	Director	Octobel 28, 2003
/s/ LEE T. TODD, JR.	Director	October 28, 2005
Lee T. Todd, Jr.	Director	Octobel 28, 2003
/s/ JAMES W. WHALEN	Director	October 28, 2005
James W. Whalen	2	Octobel 28, 2003
	2	

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

xhibit Iumber	Exhibit Description	Method of Filing
3.01	Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company (As Amended Through July 18, 2005)	Filed as Exhibit 3.01 to Form 8-K filed on July 18, 2005
3.02	Bylaws of the Company (amended through January 12, 2005)	Filed as Exhibit 3.01 to Form 8-K filed on February 10, 2005
4.01 (a)	Indenture with The Bank of New York, as successor to Bank of Montreal Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of July 1, 1996	Filed as Exhibit 4.01(a) to Form S-4 Registration Statement (#333-103178) filed on February 13, 2003
4.01 (b)	Officer's Declaration dated September 27, 2005 establishing the terms of the issuance and sale of the Notes of the Company in an aggregate amount of \$150,000,000	Filed herewith as Exhibit 4.01(b)
4.02	Purchase Agreement, dated September 27, 2005, by and among the Company and the initial purchasers	Filed herewith as Exhibit 4.02
4.03	Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 30, 2005, by and among the Company and the initial purchasers	Filed herewith as Exhibit 4.03
4.04	Equitable Resources, Inc.'s Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of August 11, 2005	Filed as Exhibit 4.01 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005
5.01	Opinion of Reed Smith LLP	Filed herewith as Exhibit 5.01
10.01	1999 Equitable Resources, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (amended and restated October 20, 2004)	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
10.02	Form of Participant Award Agreement (Restricted Stock) under 1999 Equitable Resources, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.05 to Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2005
10.03	Form of Participant Award Agreement (Stock Option) under 1999 Equitable Resources, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
10.04	1994 Equitable Resources, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan	Refiled as Exhibit 10.06 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.05	Equitable Resources, Inc. Breakthrough Long-Term Incentive Plan with certain executives of the Company (as amended)	Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000
10.06	1999 Equitable Resources, Inc. Non-Employee Directors' Stock Incentive Plan (as amended May 26, 1999)	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999
10.07	Equitable Resources, Inc. Executive	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the

Exhibit Number	Exhibit Description	Method of Filing
	Short-Term Incentive Plan	quarter ended June 30, 2001

10.08	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2004 Short-Term Incentive Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004
10.09	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2005 Short-Term Incentive Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2004
10.10	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2003 Executive Performance Incentive Program (as amended and restated April 13, 2004)	Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004
10.11	Form of Participant Award Agreement under the Equitable Resources, Inc. 2003 Executive Performance Incentive Program	Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004
10.12	Equitable Resources, Inc. Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated May 15, 2003)	Filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003
10.13	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2005 Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2004
10.14	Equitable Resources, Inc. Employee Deferred Compensation Plan (amended and restated effective December 3, 2003)	Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
10.15	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2005 Employee Deferred Compensation Plan	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 28, 2004
10.16 (a)	Employment Agreement dated as of May 4, 1998 with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998
10.16 (b)	Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.09 (b) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.16 (c)	Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.09 (c) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.16 (d)	Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.13 (d) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
10.16 (e)	Change in Control Agreement dated September 1, 2002 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.16 (f)	Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement dated as of May 4, 1998 with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998
10.16 (g)	Amended and Restated Post-Termination Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement dated December 1, 1999 with Murry S. Gerber	Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.17 (a)	Employment Agreement dated as of July 1, 1998 with David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998
		2

10.17 (b)	Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement with David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.13 (b) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.17 (c)	Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement with David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.13 (c) to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.17 (d)	Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement with David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.14 (d) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
10.17 (e)	Change in Control Agreement dated September 1, 2002 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.17 (f)	Amended and Restated Post-Termination Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement dated December 1, 1999 with David L. Porges	Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.18 (a)	Change in Control Agreement dated September 1, 2002 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and Johanna G. O'Loughlin	Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.18 (b)	Noncompete Agreement dated December 1, 1999 with Johanna G. O'Loughlin	Filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
10.18 (c)	Release re: Split Dollar Life Insurance	Filed as Exhibit 10.15 (c) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
10.19 (a)	Change in Control Agreement dated December 1, 1999 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and John A. Bergonzi	Filed as Exhibit 10.26 (a) to Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2005
10.19 (b)	Non-Compete Agreement dated December 1, 1999 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and John A. Bergonzi	Filed as Exhibit 10.26 (b) to Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2005
10.20 (a)	Change in Control Agreement dated September 1, 2002 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and Philip P. Conti	Filed as Exhibit 10.26 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002
10.20 (b)	Non-Compete Agreement dated October 30, 2000 by and between Equitable Resources, Inc. and Philip P. Conti	Filed as Exhibit 10.27 (b) to Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2005
10.21 (a)	Agreement dated May 24, 1996 with Phyllis A. Domm for deferred payment of 1996 director fees beginning May 24, 1996	Filed as Exhibit 10.14 (a) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996
10.21 (b)	Agreement dated November 27, 1996 with Phyllis A. Domm for deferred payment of 1997 director fees	Filed as Exhibit 10.14 (b) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996

10.21 (c)	Agreement dated November 30, 1997 with Phyllis A. Domm for deferred payment of 1998 director fees	Filed as Exhibit 10.14 (c) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997
10.21 (d)	Agreement dated December 5, 1998 with Phyllis A. Domm for deferred payment of 1999 director fees	Filed as Exhibit 10.20 (d) to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998
10.22	Form of Indemnification Agreement between Equitable Resources, Inc. and all executive officers and outside directors	Filed as Exhibit 10.41 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002
10.23	Directors' Compensation and Retirement Program	Filed as Exhibit 10.30 to Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2005
10.24	Equitable Resources, Inc. 2005 Executive Performance Incentive Program	Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to Form 8-K filed on March 1, 2005
10.25	Form of Participation Award Agreement under the Company's 2005 Executive Performance Incentive Program	Filed as Exhibit 10.02 to Form 8-K filed on March 1, 2005
12.01	Statement regarding computation of ratios	Filed herewith as Exhibit 12.01
23.01	Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	Filed herewith as Exhibit 23.01
23.02	Consent of Reed Smith LLP (included in Exhibit 5.01)	Filed herewith as Exhibit 5.01
23.03	Consent of Independent Petroleum Engineers	Filed herewith as Exhibit 23.03
24.01	Powers of Attorney	Filed herewith as part of the signature pages for this registration statement
25.01	Statement of Eligibility under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 of The Bank of New York (Form T-1)	Filed herewith as Exhibit 25.01
99.01	Letter of Transmittal with Respect to the Exchange Offer	Filed herewith as Exhibit 99.01
99.02	Notice of Guaranteed Delivery with Respect to the Exchange Offer	Filed herewith as Exhibit 99.02
99.03	Letter to DTC Participants Regarding Exchange Offer	Filed herewith as Exhibit 99.03
99.04	Letter to Beneficial Holders Regarding the Exchange Offer	Filed herewith as Exhibit 99.04

QuickLinks

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

About Equitable Resources, Inc.

The Exchange Offer

The Exchange Notes

RISK FACTORS

Risks Relating to Our Business

Risks Related to the Exchange Notes

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

USE OF PROCEEDS

CAPITALIZATION

SUMMARY SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

DESCRIPTION OF EXCHANGE NOTES

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

LEGAL MATTERS

EXPERTS

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

EQUITABLE RESOURCES

PART II INFORMATION